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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good morning and

          3  welcome to this morning's hearing of the City

          4  Council's Committee on Transportation. My name is

          5  John Liu and I have the privilege of chairing this

          6  Committee. I want to thank all of you for braving

          7  the extreme cold outside. We'll try to make this

          8  hearing as warm as possible. This hearing has been

          9  convened for the purposes of hearing Proposed Intro

         10  No. 185A. On the public agenda, there were two other

         11  pieces of legislation with regard to regulation and

         12  enforcement of handicap parking spots here in New

         13  York City. Those two bills have been deferred for a

         14  later date. I apologize if any of you are here for

         15  that issue. But if you let the Sergeant know that

         16  you are here for that issue, I will make it a point

         17  to notify you of the next time we have a hearing on

         18  that issue.

         19                 Today, once again, we are hearing

         20  Proposed Intro No. 185A, a bill that would amend the

         21  Administrative Code of the City of New York with

         22  regard to the creation of a review process in the

         23  event of a closure of a publicly mapped street. We

         24  have several instances of streets in New York City

         25  that have been closed for a prolonged period of time
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          2  and what we are seeking to do through this

          3  legislation is to create some kind of review process

          4  where we would examine the causes and the results of

          5  such street closures and hopefully that examination

          6  would lead to some kind of process and time frame

          7  for mitigation of negative impacts on the community

          8  and hopefully reopening these streets. Nearby City

          9  Hall, we have just such a situation with regard to

         10  Park Row which has been closed for many years now.

         11                 I'd like to turn the floor over to

         12  the prime sponsor of this important bill, Council

         13  Member Alan Gerson.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chair. In the interest of time and in the interest

         16  of hearing from the witnesses present both from our

         17  Administration and from our community, I will defer

         18  my remarks until later in this hearing except to

         19  acknowledge the stellar leadership of our Committee

         20  Chair, Chair John Liu. Our City is so fortunate to

         21  have Council Member Liu as Chair of our

         22  Transportation Committee and his support for this

         23  issue and his leadership in bringing this issue to a

         24  successful resolution which I believe we will

         25  achieve and I hope we will achieve that because this
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          2  is a good government process and a good government

          3  bill.

          4                 I hope and trust we will achieve the

          5  successful resolution cooperatively with the

          6  Administration. But we need to thank Chair John Liu

          7  for dedicating this Committee to doing its part,

          8  more than its part, to see this issue through. Thank

          9  you, Mr. Chair. This is just another example where

         10  you have been a good friend and an outstanding

         11  advocate for all communities and all people of this

         12  City. With that, I will defer my remarks on the bill

         13  until later in this hearing.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. We've

         15  been joined by a member of the Transportation

         16  Committee, Council Member James Sanders, Jr.

         17  Welcome, Council Member. At this point, we're

         18  delighted to be joined by representatives of the

         19  Administration; the Deputy Commissioner for the

         20  Department of Transportation, David Woloch and

         21  Deputy Chief John Colgan from the NYPD.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: If I can just

         23  remind all present who wish to testify and we

         24  welcome your testimony to please remember to pick up

         25  a witness sign in card from the Sergeant and fill it
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          2  out so we can make sure that you do testify.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Deputy

          4  Commissioner, Deputy Chief, thank you very much for

          5  joining us this morning. Please proceed.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Our

          7  pleasure to be here. Good morning Chairman Liu and

          8  Members of the Transportation Committee. My name is

          9  David Woloch and I am the Deputy Commissioner for

         10  External Affairs at the New York City Department of

         11  Transportation. Thank you for the opportunity to be

         12  here today to testify on Intro 185A, a bill to

         13  require notification and reporting requirements for

         14  certain street closures. With me here today is

         15  Deputy Chief John Colgan from the Police Department

         16  to help answer any questions.

         17                 Intro 185A would mandate notification

         18  and review processes in the event of the closure of

         19  a publicly mapped street. As stated in my previous

         20  two testimonies on this bill, although the spirit of

         21  the bill is one shared by this agency, the

         22  Commissioner and the Mayor, we cannot support the

         23  bill at this time. While, we do support the

         24  Council's goal of making sure that communities are

         25  aware of street closures in their areas, we already
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          2  provide much of this information for construction

          3  related work. There are already mechanisms in place

          4  that provide public notice and the legislation as

          5  currently drafted would result in burdensome and

          6  unnecessary costs to the City, as well as to overall

          7  construction and development. Let me also state that

          8  it is the City's position that the bill does not

          9  apply to street closures initiated for security

         10  reasons.

         11                 Providing proper and adequate notice

         12  of upcoming major projects requiring street closures

         13  is of great importance to DOT. Many of our efforts

         14  to improve the communication of information via the

         15  City's website are aimed at achieving transparency

         16  and providing constituents with information

         17  regarding DOT's operations and projects. As

         18  mentioned in my previous testimony last May, DOT

         19  makes available on the City's website weekly Traffic

         20  Advisories regarding major street closures. In

         21  addition, on our website, all New Yorkers can access

         22  comprehensive and up- to- date information on all

         23  current street construction permits in their

         24  communities. Furthermore, DOT is piloting a program

         25  in lower Manhattan, using GIS technology, which
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          2  allows the public to view a map of the active

          3  permits in their community.

          4                 In addition to the public information

          5  regarding street closures on the internet, public

          6  outreach on large construction projects including

          7  DDC roadway projects, DOT bridge projects and New

          8  York State highway projects with an impact on the

          9  City's streets is already substantial. First,

         10  preliminary designs are circulated to the community

         11  board and elected officials for comment. Second, the

         12  community is again contacted once designs are

         13  finalized and before the commencement of the

         14  project. Other methods of outreach may also include

         15  use of a community liaison, information disseminated

         16  through the press or through the DOT borough

         17  commissioner offices, pre- construction meetings,

         18  list serves, and newsletters.

         19                 The Department of Design and

         20  Construction has a project browser on its website

         21  which includes all of its projects and which

         22  provides information such as the area map and

         23  project name. This database may be searched by

         24  community board, council district and physical

         25  location. Outreach on large upcoming community
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          2  projects is also done by other entities that work

          3  under our streets, including the MTA, Con Ed and

          4  other utilities.

          5                 Much of the analysis called for in

          6  this bill is already done for projects with

          7  significant community impact. Many of our large

          8  projects do not stop at a pre- construction analysis

          9  of the impact of the project, but are subject to

         10  ongoing monitoring in order to address any

         11  unforeseen impacts. In addition, DOT highway rules

         12  requiring permittees conducting construction

         13  activities requiring street closures to notify the

         14  Police and Fire Departments in advance of any work

         15  performed. For all permit requests, large and small,

         16  DOT's Office of Construction Mitigation and

         17  Coordination is charged with assuring that permit

         18  stipulations balance the importance of the work done

         19  with the impact upon the community.

         20                 This bill, however, even in its

         21  amended form, would place a burdensome and onerous

         22  requirement on DOT, as additional staff would be

         23  required to fulfill its provisions. The bill would

         24  require DOT to notify, within five days, the

         25  Community Board and Council Member whose district a
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          2  project is in of any partial or full street closure

          3  or permit issued. The Department issued over 190,000

          4  permits last year for street construction activity;

          5  most of which represents small partial closures The

          6  notification responsibility proposed in the bill

          7  would require DOT resources, primarily to

          8  disseminate information that wouldn't necessarily be

          9  that useful. As I said earlier, there is ample

         10  outreach for large and long- term construction

         11  projects and we have made DOT permit information

         12  available for all our permitted projects to those

         13  who are interested on our website.

         14                 In addition, subdivision B of the

         15  legislation would apply to full street closures that

         16  are longer than 90 days and that are either

         17  undertaken for City projects or private entities who

         18  come to us for a permit. Of the 190,000 permits

         19  issued each year for street construction activity,

         20  permits are granted for approximately 100 projects

         21  that require a full closure of greater than 90 days.

         22  I would like to note that the reporting requirements

         23  called for in subdivision B include information that

         24  goes beyond traditional impact studies. The City

         25  agency or private entity requesting the street
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          2  closure would assume significant costs to produce

          3  the community reassessment, impact and amelioration

          4  statement.

          5                 In order to meet the reporting

          6  requirements listed in the bill, the cost of

          7  producing studies on each initiative is estimated at

          8  approximately $10 million annually. As nearly all of

          9  these full closures are undertaken as part of

         10  government sponsored projects, taxpayers would also

         11  have to absorb most of this cost as well. In

         12  addition, DOT would have to hire a small number of

         13  staff to simply review these analyses.

         14                 Although the amended bill does

         15  improve upon the previous version, we can still not

         16  support the legislation in its current form. We do

         17  agree with the spirit of this bill. However, the

         18  specific requirements in Intro 185A would be

         19  extremely onerous and prohibitively expensive. We

         20  would be glad to meet with Council to discuss some

         21  of the particularly onerous components of the

         22  legislation and try to agree upon further amendments

         23  that could be made to improve the bill. Thank you

         24  for inviting us to testify today and we would happy

         25  to answer any questions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

          3  Deputy Commissioner, for your testimony. Again, this

          4  is a bill that has long been worked on by Council

          5  Member Gerson, this Transportation Committee, and I

          6  know that the Department of Transportation has

          7  expended time and energy into meeting with us and

          8  trying to craft something that is pragmatic and at

          9  the same time will achieve our goals here in the

         10  Council. Your testimony is very clear that the

         11  Administration and the Department of Transportation

         12  cannot support the bill in its current form. And so

         13  based on that, we are not going to be able to take a

         14  vote on the bill today.

         15                 I expect that on the next time that

         16  we have this hearing which will be on February 17,

         17  we will have had ample discussions and meetings

         18  between now and the 17th of February. At that time,

         19  I hope that we can come up with legislation that we

         20  can all agree too. Again, legislation that is

         21  pragmatic and at the same time will achieve the

         22  goals of this Committee and the needs of many

         23  communities. Some of the communities in Council

         24  Member Alan Gerson's district as well as communities

         25  represented by some of our other colleagues.
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          2                 I look forward to a series of

          3  fruitful discussions with the DOT and with the

          4  Administration in time for a vote that will take

          5  place, in any event, will take place on February 17.

          6  Thank you very much and now we have a statement from

          7  Council Member Gerson. Before Council Member Gerson

          8  proceeds, we are joined by Council Member Margarita

          9  Lopez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         11  much, Mr. Chair. I want to also acknowledge and

         12  thank you for the commitment to have a vote under

         13  any circumstances as the Chair has stated on

         14  February 17. I want to assure the community that

         15  this bill will go forward as the Chair has just

         16  announced, the Committee will take a vote on the

         17  bill on February 17, and thereafter that bill will

         18  be reported to the full Council which will take a

         19  vote. We are going to proceed with this undertaking

         20  with this important bill. Good morning, gentlemen,

         21  Chief.

         22                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: Good morning,

         23  sir.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I think the

         25  most critical sentence in your testimony is that we
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          2  do agree with the spirit of this bill. Given that,

          3  I'm going to hope and expect that we will be able to

          4  build on that spirit between now and the 17th to

          5  come up with a bill that covers all street closures

          6  for any reason whatsoever, for the purposes of

          7  having community input in a thorough review of the

          8  impact and the affects of the closure provided that

          9  the closure meets the threshold of being closed for

         10  the requisite number of days. With the purpose, with

         11  the view that if we cannot reopen the street, we

         12  should at least undertake an effort to minimize the

         13  harmful impact or the potentially harmful impact or

         14  affect on the community, on residents, on

         15  businesses, on residents of all ages, but especially

         16  those who are most vulnerable, our seniors and our

         17  youth and people with disabilities. So that as we

         18  have all stated, our goal as a City to be in this

         19  difficult time, we are still able to go about our

         20  lives as normally as possible.

         21                 I look forward to the ongoing

         22  discussion. You stated that you do most or much of

         23  what we request anyway, so therefore the bill should

         24  not involve any incremental cost. But certainly we

         25  want to work with you, any significant incremental
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          2  cost, we will want to work with you to assure that

          3  the necessary work is done in all cases because we

          4  will hear testimony that there have been cases where

          5  there has not been adequate consideration of the

          6  affects of closures of certain streets including

          7  Park Row, of course. We want to just have a bill

          8  that is a good government bill that we can support

          9  cooperatively and so going forward for future

         10  administrations as well and maybe especially in

         11  years to come, decades to come, we can be assured

         12  that communities have the benefit of the type of

         13  consideration which you have testified they deserve.

         14                 You all have testified, the last

         15  hearing, unless you have -- in the interest of time,

         16  I'm content to move on to the witnesses unless there

         17  is anything that any of you have stated in your

         18  previous testimony at the last hearing that you wish

         19  to change or correct. If you not, we have the record

         20  from that and we have the current statement

         21  delivered and we'll have the ongoing conversations

         22  and I would be contented to move forward with our

         23  common goals.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: We look

         25  forward to those discussions as well.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. I take

          3  it no one has any changes in your previous testimony

          4  from the last hearing. Any of you?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I don't.

          6  Chief?

          7                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: If the Council

          8  Members have any questions relative to statements

          9  made, I'll be happy to answer them. It was our

         10  position articulated at the last hearing at which I

         11  was present that the proposal at that time did not

         12  apply to the Police Department. I think I

         13  articulated that rather clearly.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: As I

         15  recollect, we also went through a series of

         16  questions where I had asked you if the Police

         17  Department had any objections or problems with

         18  another department or the appropriate experts within

         19  City government undertaking the review and

         20  mitigation of the affects of a closure provided that

         21  there was no impingement or second guessing of NYPD

         22  security. And you said quite clearly that you had no

         23  objections to that.

         24                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: That is correct.

         25  I did say that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: That has not

          3  changed has it?

          4                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: That has not

          5  changed.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.

          7                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: I then

          8  immediately added to that, I was not competent to

          9  make a determination as to the level of burden on

         10  that agency nor was I competent to commit any other

         11  agency to any such expectation.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: All I was

         13  asking or clarifying for the record is whether or

         14  not you or the Department had any objections. We

         15  were not asking you to testify.

         16                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: None were

         17  articulated.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you.

         19  Thank you very much then.

         20                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. We have

         22  some comments from Council Member Lopez. I'm sorry,

         23  Council Member Lopez. We have also been joined by

         24  Committee Members, Council Member Larry Seabrook

         25  from the Bronx and Council Member Helen Sears from
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          2  Queens. Welcome.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chairman. One realty that had to do with this

          5  particular closure of the street had to do that the

          6  repercussions of closing this street go all the way

          7  down to my district, District 2. The repercussions

          8  of this on the environment are very seriously. This

          9  is an area that has asthma rates like it's no

         10  tomorrow. The congestion that this is creating in

         11  that community is just undescribable. I cannot come

         12  to City Hall through that area unless I pass through

         13  the forbidden area where you need to have a pass.

         14  I'm a lucky one who has a pass with a card of the

         15  Council and my ID's on my badge. But when you try to

         16  get through there, in order to get through the point

         17  in which you can cross, it is really impossible. It

         18  is to me a diversion this action that was taken on

         19  closing that area of the Chinatown of the City of

         20  New York.

         21                 I want to understand how is the

         22  Department of Transportation, understand that taking

         23  an action like this is in compliant with the law. I

         24  want to understand that. Because in practical terms,

         25  this has been a demapping of the street, in
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          2  practical terms. In order for somebody to demapp a

          3  street, you have to go through a procedure with the

          4  City Planning Commission. That has not happened

          5  here. Then I want to understand how the Department

          6  of Transportation understand that they can surpass,

          7  ignore, jump over the procedures that mandate that a

          8  demapping of the street be put in a such way that

          9  allow the participation of the public.

         10                 I need to understand that from the

         11  Department because in all honestly, if this street

         12  is going to maintain the closed way that it is right

         13  now, then you need to modify the laws that apply to

         14  permanently demapping street. Because this is a new

         15  method that you are using for demapping streets,

         16  jumping and changing the whole system that we have.

         17  Can you please answer that question?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: This was

         19  a closure that was undertaken at the behalf of the

         20  Police Department. I'll defer to the Police

         21  Department.

         22                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: Good morning,

         23  Council Member Lopez. I believe recently Justice

         24  Talbid (phonetic) had ruled that the closure was in

         25  fact not a demapping of the street. That's a matter
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          2  of court record.

          3                 Having said that, we did have

          4  conversations with the Department of Transportation

          5  and we made it clear to the Department that we were

          6  exercising our responsibilities at the common law

          7  and under the charter to protect life and property.

          8  We were not making application to DOT for a permit

          9  to close that street. We were closing it consistent

         10  with our legal obligation to protect the people of

         11  the City of New York.

         12                 Having said that, we realize there

         13  are significant burdens that accrue to that closure.

         14  We would suggest that the burdens would be greater

         15  if we didn't have that closure and we made the Park

         16  Row approach to One Police Plaza an attack factor.

         17  We would suggest that we were weighing the greater

         18  of two evils. And the lesser of those two evils in

         19  our view was the closure. That was a professional

         20  determination made by security experts and the New

         21  York City Department.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Well the

         23  problem with the premises that you are presenting to

         24  us is that number one, it is not rationale behind

         25  closing that street for public traffic in regard of
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          2  mass transit. For example, why does that street

          3  cannot have the mass transit to go through it in

          4  order to facilitate the problem of traffic jams that

          5  are forming there? One of the biggest reasons why

          6  the traffic jam occur is because the public

          7  transportation has been also eliminated from there.

          8  And the second point that I want to make is, look,

          9  we all, this entire community, District 1 and

         10  District 2 see who park in there. We see the private

         11  cars. We see the permits that are special permits

         12  given to the police. We are not blind to what we

         13  see. And if it is a matter of security, who are

         14  anybody to tell us that one of those cars don't have

         15  some kind of device that would explode in there. If

         16  this is a matter of security, then why are you

         17  allowing cars to park in there. Why? Why?

         18                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: Vehicles

         19  entering that area are routinely subjected to search

         20  and under vehicle surveillance. With respect to the

         21  issue of the public transportation matter, we have a

         22  continuing environmental review underway that will

         23  assess the impacts including queuing of buses. You

         24  have both 64 foot articulating buses. You have CNG

         25  equipped buses and regular 42 foot buses that would
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          2  be coming into that area. We did talk to the MTA and

          3  we have a significant issue with respect to the

          4  queuing because we would be inspecting those buses

          5  as they enter that protected area. The queuing might

          6  create a condition more onerous than a currently

          7  existing one. It is being explored, however, as part

          8  of the environmental review.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I am not going

         10  to ask any other questions except to tell you this.

         11  I have an explorer which is an SUV. I have never

         12  been looked inside my car not once that I go through

         13  that post. Not once. The back of my car, the inside

         14  of my car or the front of my car. Then if you tell

         15  me that every car that goes through there is

         16  inspected, I'm telling right now that had never

         17  happened with me. Never. Not once.

         18                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: Not only

         19  wouldn't I say that, I'll tell you that I didn't say

         20  that Council Member Lopez. I talked of the issues of

         21  the cars that would remain parked in a static

         22  condition at that time during the day. With respect

         23  to your personal vehicle, I would suggest that the

         24  headquarters security unit has made a determination

         25  that you pose no threat to the City of New York.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That's a

          4  compliment.

          5                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: I trust that

          6  Council Member Lopez loves the City as much as we

          7  do.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We have many, many

          9  people who wish to offer testimony today. I would

         10  ask everybody to keep the decorum of this public

         11  hearing. We do not need to see anymore outbursts and

         12  that would be as a courtesy to the people who are

         13  testifying today as well as to everybody else

         14  involved in this hearing. Council Member Lopez makes

         15  a number of very good points. Those points have been

         16  consistently voiced very strongly by Council Member

         17  Alan Gerson for the last three years and I think

         18  those issues are not new to you, Deputy Chief or

         19  Deputy Commissioner. And again, between now and

         20  February 17, I am hopeful that we can craft

         21  legislation that will achieve the objectives that we

         22  try to achieve in this Committee and in the Council

         23  and at the same time, a practically enforceable by

         24  this City as well. Council Member Alan Gerson has

         25  one follow- up.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Just, Chief,

          3  you refer to the Court Order EIS process now

          4  underway --

          5                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: Yes, sir.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Does that

          7  process present any security problem or threat to

          8  the City of New York or the community in any way?

          9                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: Does the process

         10  of --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: The court

         12  order of EIS.

         13                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: I am conferring

         14  with my counsel here. I'm not certain that I quite

         15  understand the question. An EIS in and of itself

         16  doesn't pose a threat. The requirement to perform

         17  the EIS is currently on appeal. But there is an

         18  environmental review under way.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I understand

         20  that the requirement is on appeal and there is a

         21  range of legal issues which I'm happy not to get

         22  into with you at this hearing. Just from the

         23  security standpoint, professionally, the activities

         24  or endeavors or the steps required by the court

         25  order EIS now under appeal and without prejudgment
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          2  as to the legal issues that are going to be heard on

          3  the appeal, which you said you're doing.

          4                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: Right.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I just want to

          6  make sure that is not presenting any security

          7  problem.

          8                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: I'm very

          9  familiar with the DEIS, PDEIS and FEIS requirements.

         10  Some of the disclosures may in fact pose a

         11  significant security concern. There are reasons not

         12  all of which we would be comfortable with disclosing

         13  for which we closed Park Row.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So in those

         15  cases and when you say some, I take it that's not

         16  all of what is required by the EIS. Is that most of

         17  what is required by the EIS since you said you're

         18  familiar with it or just a few particular aspects of

         19  it might raise --

         20                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: The disclosures

         21  give me the greatest cause for concern.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: The

         23  disclosures?

         24                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: Exactly. The

         25  reasons wherefore an agency would make a decision
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          2  for security reasons to do something, it's as

          3  dangerous in my opinion as putting the blueprints

          4  for sensitive public buildings on the internet and

          5  allowing them to be archived on search engines for

          6  decades to come. Those are concerns.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: In those

          8  cases, if you meaning the Department, made the

          9  determination as to the need to keep certain

         10  information confidential for security reasons and we

         11  allowed you to respond with a statement to that

         12  effect that you could not disclose the requisite

         13  information for security purposes, I take it you

         14  would then have no problems to go on with the other

         15  aspects of the EIS to figure out ways to minimize

         16  the burdens which you testified as --

         17                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: I don't think

         18  that's necessarily the case. I would want some time

         19  to review whatever proposal was put before us.

         20  Secondly, to reiterate --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Because --

         22                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: -- What Council

         23  Member Lopez -- if I may, sir. I'm not finished. To

         24  reiterate what Council Member Lopez said before, she

         25  said sometimes the courts are wrong. Sometimes the
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          2  courts make mistakes. If might be the Council's

          3  intention to require us to do one thing and we could

          4  have taxpayers sue and have a court order us to do

          5  another thing. That gives me cause for concern.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: We understand

          7  that and that's why we have mechanisms for a PO and

          8  that's why NYPD --

          9                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: Absolutely. This

         10  is why we invoke those mechanisms.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Which is why

         12  you have standing to do so. There is a current EIS

         13  process underway to which you testified.

         14                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: Yes, sir.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: My question

         16  was simply, are there any aspects of that process

         17  now underway which are presenting a security

         18  concern.

         19                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: None that I am

         20  aware of currently.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: You are aware

         22   -- well, you just testified a little while ago as I

         23  recall, you were very familiar with the EIS process.

         24                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I take it that
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          2  must include the EIS process as it applies to Park

          3  Row about which I know you are very familiar.

          4                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: That's correct.

          5  Although, I am --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I would

          7  presume --

          8                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: -- Not actively

          9  engaged in the process by which that investigation

         10  is being conducted. My prospective concern would be

         11  for disclosures that may be a requirement of the

         12  final EIS report.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Aside from

         14  disclosures as to reasons why, are there any other

         15  aspects of the EIS process which you said you are

         16  very familiar with, which would present a security

         17  concern?

         18                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: None that I am

         19  currently aware of.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. That's

         21  what I wanted to know. I do want to acknowledge that

         22  you did participate and attend community forum which

         23  we had organized and first of all, I want to

         24  acknowledge your presence there.

         25                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I take it that

          3  type of forum where folks from the community are

          4  able to ask such an outstanding public servants as

          5  yourself, questions and hear directly from you. That

          6  in and of itself does not present any security

          7  threat, does it?

          8                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: No, it does not.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you.

         10  Thank you very much, Chief.

         11                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: Thank you, sir.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         13  Member Gerson, for your cutting questions and for

         14  your advocacy on behalf of this community and the

         15  issue. Deputy Chief, Deputy Commissioner, thank you

         16  very much for joining us.

         17                 DEPUTY CHIEF COLGAN: Thank you, sir.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Thank

         19  you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'm going to ask the

         21  next panel to join us at the witness table. Danny

         22  Chen and Jeanie Chin from the Civil Center Residents

         23  Coalition; David McWater from Community Board 3, the

         24  Chairperson of Community Board 3 and John Quinn,

         25  District Leader. While the current panel proceeds to
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          2  testify, let me notify the next panel to prepare to

          3  come up to the witness table. That would be David

          4  Louie from the Chinese Chamber of Commerce of New

          5  York; Jessica Ashenberg representing Assemblyman

          6  Sheldon Silver; Paul Viggiano, President of South

          7  Bridge Towers; and Toby Turkel, representing Chatham

          8  Towers as well. Good morning, Danny. Please proceed.

          9                 MR. CHEN: I would like to thank the

         10  Members of the City Council for holding this

         11  hearing. I'd especially like to thank my old friend,

         12  Alan Gerson, for sponsoring the bill and getting us

         13  here. The history of treatment of Asians in America,

         14  especially in time of war, is not one that America

         15  should be proud of. Most people are probably at

         16  least vaguely aware of the Chinese Exclusion Act of

         17  1882, the internment of Japanese Americans during

         18  World War II and some might even be aware of the

         19  anti- Asian violence that accompanied the mass

         20  immigration of Chinese into this country in the mid-

         21  19th century.

         22                 Few people are probably aware that

         23  after the Great Earthquake of 1906, the City fathers

         24  of San Francisco saw an opportunity there and

         25  conspired to round up the Chinese immigrants and
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          2  relocate San Francisco's Chinatown to less valuable

          3  real estate outside of Chinatown. Eventually,

          4  political and economic pressure ended this

          5  catastrophe driven, racially driven land grab.

          6                 More recently, in 1989 after the

          7  earthquake in San Francisco, the Embarcadero Freeway

          8  which provided easy access into Chinatown was

          9  damaged and was closed to vehicles. Many in San

         10  Francisco saw that as an opportunity to get rid of

         11  the freeway which obstructed waterfront view. In

         12  1991, the Embarcadero Freeway was demolished,

         13  without an adequate replacement to facilitate access

         14  into and out of Chinatown there. Again, a

         15  catastrophe driven opportunity to improve the City

         16  at the expense of the Chinese- American

         17  subpopulation. To this day, San Francisco's

         18  Chinatown continues to suffer from that lack of

         19  access.

         20                 Here on September 11, a terrorist

         21  attack led to street closures from 23rd and 14th

         22  Streets on down for security reasons. It was a

         23  natural and sane response to the first attack on

         24  American mainland. But now almost three and half

         25  years later, most streets are long reopened, except
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          2  for the ones critical to access into and around

          3  Chinatown and we are reeling from those closures.

          4  This is yet another disaster driven opportunity by

          5  bureaucrats who believe that our basic needs are

          6  somehow inferior to the needs of One Police Plaza

          7  commuters.

          8                 Hot 97's incredibly insensitive

          9  broadcast mocking tsunami victims last week reminds

         10  us that overt and malicious racism is alive and well

         11  in 21st century New York City. And investigations

         12  into former Police Commissioner Kerik reminds us

         13  that the position of New York City Police

         14  Commissioner is itself not immune to the possibility

         15  of the abuse of power. So it is any less abuse to

         16  steal public streets to provide parking for One

         17  Police Plaza commuters? And it is any less a sign of

         18  racism to extend that ill gotten makeshaft parking

         19  lot, 600 feet north of Police Headquarters into

         20  Chinatown where on the south side of Police

         21  Headquarters, you can get off a ramp onto the

         22  Brooklyn Bridge and approach Police Headquarters

         23  within 50 feet.

         24                 Certainly, it cannot be purely

         25  security that drives these decisions. These are just
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          2  some questions that should be answered under review.

          3  It should be evident to everyone that a review

          4  process is necessary to maintain a proper system of

          5  checks and balances, one of the cornerstones of our

          6  democratic society. Without such a review, abuses

          7  will almost certainly develop. Perhaps they already

          8  have. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Danny.

         10  We've been joined by Council Member Diana Reyna from

         11  Brooklyn, a member of this Transportation Committee.

         12  Jeanie, please proceed.

         13                 MS. CHIN: I just want to quickly

         14  address some of the points that were made earlier

         15  regarding Inspector Colgan premise that an

         16  environmental review is underway. Yes, it is

         17  underway, but under threat of a lawsuit and the

         18  police and the City have repeatedly blocked and

         19  stalled every step of the way and they are still

         20  appealing. Regarding the statement that was made

         21  that Inspector Colgan has meet with us. Yes, he had

         22  one meeting with us over the course of four years.

         23  The rest was under threat of a lawsuit.

         24                 We fervently thank all the City

         25  Council members who have fought so hard for the Park
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          2  Row bill. The unprecedented closing of Park Row, our

          3  main north/south artery and surrounding streets

          4  continue to impact the daily lives of those who live

          5  and work near Park Row. I'm speaking not just about

          6  the traffic chaos at Chatham Square where Worth and

          7  St. James Streets must absorb traffic that once

          8  traveled on Park Row as well as the barricaded parts

          9  of Madison Street, Rose Street, and Pearl Street.

         10  I'm not just talking about the daily risk to our

         11  health and safety as emergency vehicles continue to

         12  navigate this circuitous maze to our homes and

         13  businesses. Nor am I just referring to the thousands

         14  of people living, working and going to schools

         15  around the Civic Center who must continually waste

         16  precious time navigating the barricaded streets

         17  where MTA buses have been rerouted. The flow and

         18  movement of our community life has been permanently

         19  altered without our input and without any recourse.

         20                 I'm not just referring to the

         21  thousands of hours and dollars that have been wasted

         22  on lawsuits and a traffic assessment study that we

         23  did not wish to file, yet which we have continued to

         24  win in our courts despite the City's repeated

         25  appeals and delays. Four years later, we're still
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          2  trying to keep on top of all the traffic studies,

          3  reports and proposals for the redirection of traffic

          4  to relieve the congestion at Chatham Square, all

          5  because Park Row is closed, with the City falsely

          6  declaring that there is no impact on the community.

          7                 We are forced to remain vigilant,

          8  particularly the past few months to ensure that

          9  reconstruction plans such as those proposed for

         10  Worth Street and St. James, proposed reversals of

         11  traffic on Baxter, Oliver and Catherine Streets;

         12  proposed rerouting of a Chinatown bus from East

         13  Broadway to Madison are in fact good for the people

         14  who live and work in the neighborhood rather than

         15  just another step towards the creation of a super

         16  highway along narrow streets in order to relieve the

         17  congestion due to Park Row's closure.

         18                 In large ways or small, everywhere I

         19  turn in the neighborhood, the reverberations from

         20  Park Row permeate our lives. Last month, I was

         21  standing on Park Row when a new resident was denied

         22  access through the Park Row barricades to the

         23  handicap/delivery ramp of our building because a

         24  private police vehicle was parked there; also, the

         25  site of a fire hydrant. Despite our pleas, the
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          2  resident was forced to park his moving van at the

          3  corner, over 100 feet from the entrance to our

          4  building What recourse do we have? We,

          5  unfortunately, have as neighbors, a law enforcement

          6  agency that feels its parking needs override the

          7  needs of the common citizen. That the laws that they

          8  are charged to enforce do not apply to them. What

          9  recourse do ordinary citizens have against a callous

         10  and sometimes vindictive administration who turns a

         11  deaf ear to its neighbors?

         12                 How many more cold winters must we

         13  keep asking people, particularly seniors, to attend

         14  meetings, hearings, rallies, press conferences to

         15  defend the occupation of their streets? How can we

         16  keep asking Dr. Goldschmidtt, the head of Emergency

         17  Services at NYU Downtown Hospital to appear in venue

         18  after venue to state the impact of the street

         19  closures on travel time to the emergency room at the

         20  hospital? How many times must we keep asking small

         21  shop owners and business organizations who are

         22  trying to keep their businesses afloat to come out

         23  and speak? How many more vacation days must I use to

         24  attend meetings? Our community has been burned out

         25  dealing with the unfair, unprecedented street
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          2  closures with severe impacts, but no legal recourse.

          3                 Today, we ask each City Council

          4  Member to make a true difference in the lives of all

          5  New Yorkers. Protect us with the Park Row Bill so

          6  that no other community has to suffer through Park

          7  Row Hell. Yesterday, it was us. Tomorrow it could be

          8  you. Thank you for your support.

          9                 MR. MCWATER: Hello. I'm David

         10  McWater. Thank you for the opportunity to testify in

         11  support of Intro 185A, the Park Row Bill. I'm

         12  testifying for Community Board 3. A section of Park

         13  Row is within the Community Board 3 district and

         14  many of our residents and businesses affected by the

         15  closing of Park Row are within CB3's boundaries. The

         16  tremendous negative impact that the closure of Park

         17  Row has had on the immediate community has

         18  demonstrated the urgent need to establish a review

         19  process that includes a community impact study for

         20  long- term closure of streets.

         21                 Park Row was closed in the name of

         22  security to protect citizens; but without any

         23  concern or communication with the very people

         24  supposedly being protected. The community has been

         25  isolated, critical emergency services have been
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          2  compromised, services such as public transportation

          3  have been lost, and businesses have closed because

          4  of lack of customers and ability to receive

          5  delivers. CB3 has passed two resolutions regarding

          6  Park Row and this legislation. The first resolution

          7  found the closure of Park Row unacceptable as well

          8  as the failure to communicate with the community and

          9  the failure to offer any mitigation.

         10                 In our testimony in May 2004, we

         11  recommended that the City should study the effects

         12  of security procedures and offer mitigation for

         13  residents and businesses. In June 2003, the

         14  Community Board passed a second Park Row resolution

         15  to support the current legislation. The resolution

         16  supports the creation of a review process which

         17  would ensure that all communities are treated

         18  equally and fairly. We requested that the

         19  legislation incorporate enforcement of mitigation

         20  for the community and that it ensure community input

         21  into studies and impact findings.

         22                 Although Community Board 3 supports

         23  this legislation, we believe that the lack of

         24  enforcement of mitigation for the community presents

         25  a flaw. Even more importantly, the legislation does
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          2  not address the lack of process that would

          3  incorporate community involvement and input into the

          4  review process. The lack of community involvement in

          5  the review process is a major defect. We strongly

          6  urge that the Committee Members reconsider the need

          7  for involvement and input from community residents,

          8  businesses, and service providers such as hospitals.

          9  We are the community that is being protected and we

         10  cannot be protected without a voice in the

         11  procedure. Closing a street is closing a lifeline to

         12  a community. We ask that you ensure that regulations

         13  for the review process be within a reasonable time

         14  period. The time period for the process has grown

         15  and grown. Ninety days is a very long time.

         16                 Community Board 3 supports this

         17  legislation. We also find the legislation does not

         18  go far enough. The current situation with Park Row

         19  shows that it is necessary to mandate community

         20  input into the process and to require mitigation of

         21  negative impacts on residents and businesses. Thank

         22  you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Our district leader,

         24  John.

         25                 MR. QUINN: Besides being district
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          2  leader, I'm also a resident of South Bridge Towers

          3  and a member of the Board of Directors. The

          4  situation with the closing of Park Row, it affects

          5  the entire community. But what I would like to

          6  address is something that's going to happen in the

          7  future that might cause, well, will cause problems

          8  to a quantum leap in the safety for the people of

          9  our community, the residents of our community.

         10                 The developer, Bruce Ratnam,

         11  (phonetic) plans to build a 75 story office tower,

         12  well mix use tower, on the site of downtown

         13  hospital's parking lot. The street that adjoins

         14  downtown hospital basically has no outlet. It comes

         15  around Fulton Street and comes into Franklin Street

         16  which is always blocked off. During rush hour, it's

         17  immoveable. You can't get down the street. What I'd

         18  like to see is a halt to this project, a

         19  postponement of this project until we've done some

         20  study as to where is the traffic going to go? The

         21  traffic forms a complete circle from one traffic jam

         22  to another traffic jam. This is totally due to the

         23  closing of Park Row.

         24                 If traffic was able to move out of

         25  that area, make a left turn towards City Hall or go
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          2  straight through which it's totally blocked off now.

          3  That's not going to happen. But there is no outlet

          4  for traffic now. And this is totally due to the

          5  closing of Park Row. If traffic was able to move out

          6  of that area, make a left turn towards City Hall or

          7  go straight through which it's totally blocked off

          8  now, that's not going to happen. But there is no

          9  outlet for traffic now. I'm figuring that traffic

         10  will increase in that area at least five times when

         11  construction starts.

         12                 I think this has to be taken into

         13  consideration and it wasn't taken into

         14  consideration. I do believe and I know the Mayor

         15  supports the project. I'm not totally against the

         16  project. But I do believe this project has to be put

         17  on hold until this is taken into consideration.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you for your

         20  testimony. Let me say that all of your concerns and

         21  I'm sure we'll hear concerns from the many people

         22  who have joined us this morning to testify are heard

         23  very loud and clear in this Committee. We understand

         24  that we would like to see Park Row re- opened with

         25  the many other streets throughout the City that are
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          2  represented by some of our colleagues, where we

          3  would like to see those streets opened as well. But

          4  the Park Row closure and the refusal of the

          5  Administration to reopen this street is one that

          6  does concern us.

          7                 The process is something that I would

          8  like everybody to understand which is that there is

          9  a lawsuit and in my opinion, the lawsuit has been

         10  very, very successful so far on the community side.

         11  The lawsuit and I'm sure Council Member Gerson can

         12  expand upon this, the lawsuit requires the City to

         13  do certain things. Whatever bill that we pass would

         14  not supersede what the court judgments are

         15  dictating. So it's important that everybody

         16  understands that. In the event that the lawsuits,

         17  the appeals process goes in the direction opposite

         18  from what the community would like to see, it is our

         19  hope that this legislation would be able to provide

         20  some kind of backup plan in case the court appeals

         21  do not go favorably with what the community wants.

         22                 It's something that the community

         23  needs to understand very clearly. If somehow the

         24  court appeals are not favorable to the community and

         25  we pass this legislation, that also does not mean
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          2  necessarily that Park Row will be reopened

          3  immediately. That is something that it's important

          4  for everybody to understand. What we try to do, we

          5  as a City Council and in this Committee, we can go

          6  ahead and pass the bill that's before us today. We

          7  can take a vote. We can all vote yes. We can pass

          8  the bill. But then the Mayor has a choice of whether

          9  or not to veto the bill. As long as the Department

         10  of Transportation and the NYPD comes before this

         11  hearing and says that they oppose the bill, then the

         12  Mayor will veto it.

         13                 In some cases, we as a Council can

         14  override the veto and we will achieve the objectives

         15  of the bill even if we override the Mayor's veto. In

         16  this case, the provisions of this bill are 100

         17  percent dependent upon the Administration to do

         18  certain things. Sometimes when they are adamantly

         19  opposed to carrying out the provisions or to

         20  agreeing to these provisions, then we can pass a

         21  bill. But at the end of the day, it will still

         22  require us as a Council to go to court to force the

         23  Administration, the Executive Branch of government

         24  to do what we legislate in the legislative branch.

         25  And that in the end does not help what we're trying
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          2  to do for the community either.

          3                 It is important for everybody in this

          4  room to understand the process and we again will

          5  vote on this on February 17. Council Member Gerson

          6  has been very, very insistent that we take the vote

          7  on it regardless. We are going to try one final

          8  attempt, one last ditch effort to work out a bill

          9  with the Administration. I am confident that we can

         10  come up with something that the Administration can

         11  uphold and that will achieve the objectives of what

         12  we try to do in this Committee and the City Council.

         13  Do you want to add anything?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         15  much, Chair Liu for explicating the procedure. Let

         16  me just first announce there are seats which the

         17  Sergeant has set up available towards the front. So

         18  anyone standing, Paul, anyone else back there, feel

         19  free to come and take a seat. We do have seats

         20  available. I also want to thank the seniors, I want

         21  to thank everyone, but I want to especially thank

         22  the seniors from Project Open Door for joining us on

         23  this terribly frigid day. I think the presence of

         24  everyone here in this overflowing room testifies in

         25  and of itself to the importance of this issue to the

                                                            46

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  community.

          3                 Actually, Mr. Chair, I don't have a

          4  question so much for this panel. But I just want to

          5  ask, is there anyone remaining in the audience from

          6  the Administration from either the Department of

          7  Transportation or the NYPD or any other branch of

          8  the Administration? I think it's a shame, Mr. Chair,

          9  that the Administration could not even leave one

         10  representative to hear the testimony of this

         11  community which has come out on a great

         12  inconvenience and which is living with this great

         13  inconvenience and that's a understatement. Clearly,

         14  they will have the transcript available. But I think

         15  it speaks for itself that there is no representative

         16  here.

         17                 Just to add to what our Chair said

         18  forth with respect to the procedure, when we pass

         19  this bill, it will prevent as Ms. Chin put it, Park

         20  Row Hell from recurring. But it will also, I

         21  believe, strengthen this community in the ongoing

         22  legal battle. I can tell you, we have been

         23  absolutely adamant in insisting on including Park

         24  Row in this bill, even though I can tell you there

         25  have been efforts to exempt it. We will not accept
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          2  that and we will not settle for that. Park Row will

          3  be fully included which means one, it will

          4  strengthen the communities position in the appeal

          5  going forward.

          6                 Two, it gives us an additional safety

          7  net in the event that the appellate Judge rules

          8  against the community on whatever legal grounds.

          9  This bill will then be on the books and will take

         10  effect. Three, that hopefully will discourage the

         11  Administration from wasting taxpayer dollars by

         12  prosecuting an unjust and ungrounded appeal. This

         13  bill will include Park Row and will have relevance

         14  and when we get it done, we will begin to see at the

         15  very least improvements in the surrounding

         16  conditions.

         17                 I just want to with respect to the

         18  testimony of you, Mr. Chair, our Chair of Community

         19  Board 3, based in part on the testimony presented by

         20  your district manager at our first hearing, the bill

         21  has been reworked and does explicitly include the

         22  requirement of a full community input from all

         23  sectors of the community at a mandatory community

         24  public hearing. That was actually the basis of my

         25  questioning of Chief Colgan as to whether or not
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          2  that type of hearing would present a security

          3  problem. You heard him say no which we all know. But

          4  we are going to keep that provision in the bill. You

          5  may not have seen the most amended version. But I

          6  want to assure you that that is in there.

          7                 There is going to be an negotiation

          8  process. The community is better served up to a

          9  point if we can get the Administration to agree to a

         10  bill and avoid a veto and avoid the Administration

         11  fighting and refusing to implement it clearly. So

         12  we're going to make every effort to reach an

         13  agreement without shortchanging the fundamental

         14  provisions of the bill. We may have to compromise

         15  and I would suggest the community is better served

         16  reaching a compromise so long as we do not, to get a

         17  bill done on the books, so long as we do not and we

         18  will not, I assure you, compromise on the inclusion

         19  of Park Row and on any of the other fundamental

         20  provisions.

         21                 MS. CHIN: Excuse me, can I read one

         22   --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         24  Member Gerson.

         25                 MS. CHIN: Sorry. Can I read one brief
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          2  statement from the President of the Alfred E. Smith

          3  Houses?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I will be happy to

          5  accept the written testimony into the record. We

          6  have a large number of people waiting their turn to

          7  testify as well. Thanks very much. We will know hear

          8  from Jessica Ashenberg representing Assemblyman

          9  Speaker Sheldon Silver; David Louie, Paul Viggiano,

         10  and Toby Turkel. Following this panel, I'd like to

         11  notify the next panel to prepare to testify. That

         12  would be Mr. York Chan from the Chinese Consolidated

         13  Benevolence Association; Madilyn Wills from

         14  Community Board 1; Sanford Goldstein from Chatham

         15  Towers and Sio Wai Sang from Canal Street Merchants

         16  Association. Ms. Ashenberg, please proceed.

         17                 MS. ASHENBERG: Thank you. It is my

         18  privilege to be here this morning on behalf of

         19  Speaker Silver who represents the 64th Assembly

         20  District in Lower Manhattan, which includes the

         21  Lower East Side, Chinatown, the Civic Center area,

         22  the Financial District, the World Trade Center site,

         23  Battery Park City and specifically Park Row.

         24                 Thank you for allowing me the

         25  opportunity to testify on Intro No. 185A. As the
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          2  Assembly representative for Lower Manhattan and a

          3  former interested party and litigant in the Civic

          4  Center Residents Coalition's lawsuit for the opening

          5  of Park Row, I fully support the passage of Intro

          6  Number 185A. By way of background, as the Park Row

          7  lawsuit continues with the court system, the Judge

          8  ruled that only residents who lived within the

          9  security zone had standing to be party in the

         10  lawsuit and as a result all interested elected

         11  officials and community leaders were taken off the

         12  lawsuit which is why he is a former litigant.

         13                 Currently, residents lack the ability

         14  to review and comment on New York City's exercise of

         15  police power in the closure of streets. The most

         16  recent example of this closure is Park Row where New

         17  York City Police Department, the Office of Emergency

         18  Management and the Mayor's office did not have to

         19  meet any burden of proof or provide an explanation

         20  to the community. To be clear, the safety and

         21  security of Police headquarters is paramount, but

         22  there needs to be a check on what measures the NYPD

         23  takes to secure their headquarters. There needs to

         24  be a forum for the City to explain its reasons to

         25  the affected community.
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          2                 In the Park Row case, the NYPD

          3  submitted an environmental impact assessment study

          4  that went before the court and the court found that

          5  it failed to look at the environmental impact

          6  outside the immediate area considered the secure

          7  zone. It was only because the residents forced a

          8  judicial review of the EAIS that it was found by the

          9  court to be incomplete. A complete environmental

         10  review is the responsibility of the City and should

         11  have initially been completed as per New York State

         12  environmental laws. Citizens should not be forced to

         13  spend their own money and time for lawsuits in order

         14  for the City to account for the validity of street

         15  closings. A more comprehensive study would have

         16  shown the many negative effects of the Park Row

         17  closure has had on Lower Manhattan.

         18                 The Speaker's testimony goes through

         19  the specifics of traffic congestion on all the

         20  surrounding streets, particularly Worth, Pearl, East

         21  Broadway and the Bowery. I know you've heard from

         22  many people so far about buses being rerouted,

         23  seniors and people with disability making their day

         24  much harder to get around because of the street

         25  closures. Subsequent traffic jams are not only an
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          2  inconvenience that hurts the local economy, but

          3  delay response times for emergency vehicles

          4  particularly because NYU downtown hospital, the only

          5  hospital downtown, is just south of Park Row.

          6                 The closure of Park Row hinders

          7  access and deters people from visiting Chinatown and

          8  hurts local businesses which have seen a dramatic

          9  rise in unemployment since 9/11. This obviously

         10  impedes all efforts to boost the economy and

         11  businesses in Chinatown to pre- 9/11 levels. Bus

         12  routes and the many Lower Manhattan residents who

         13  ride them daily have been negatively affected,

         14  creating not only an inconvenience in a change of a

         15  route, but a real problem as I said earlier for

         16  elderly and disabled that rely on the

         17  transportation. Moreover, residents and businesses

         18  in the secure area are isolated because vehicular

         19  access to their building is greatly limited making

         20  drop offs and pick ups difficult.

         21                 The passage of Intro No. 185A is

         22  essential to creating greater oversight of the

         23  City's actions. While the City is responsible to

         24  review street closings, a full review of the impact

         25  of such closings will have on the community and a
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          2  full disclosure of those findings to the affected

          3  community is imperative. The devastating effects of

          4  Park Row without mandatory and proper public review

          5  can happen to any community. Intro No. 185A will

          6  help prevent something like this from happening

          7  again. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. We have

          9  been joined, actually long joined by Council Member

         10  Miguel Martinez, a member of this Committee from

         11  Manhattan. Thank you. Mr. Louie.

         12                 MR. LOUIE: My name is David Louie.

         13  I'm the President and representing the Chinese

         14  Chamber of Commerce of New York. I don't have a

         15  prepared statement. I don't have a written prepared

         16  statement. But I certainly don't want to be

         17  repetitive of the people who have already spoken

         18  before me on the problems with the closure of Park

         19  Row. So what I will do, is I will mention a few

         20  points that I don't believe have been mentioned yet.

         21                 Park Row being closed, of course,

         22  impacts of the economy of Chinatown and one of the

         23  ways it impacts the economy of Chinatown is not

         24  allowing where tour buses used to be able to park.

         25  Today, tour buses are avoiding Chinatown. Workers in
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          2  the City Hall area who used to walk down Park Row

          3  for a leisurely lunch to Chinatown in the spring and

          4  summer times, obviously can't get there. That hurts.

          5                 An earlier speaker spoke about how

          6  the Chinese or Asians have been treated like second

          7  class citizens in this country over the many years.

          8  It seems to continue to be the case. Well, certainly

          9  when it comes to parking that is the case. There was

         10  a time in Chinatown where on both sides of Bayid

         11  (phonetic) Street from the beginning of Bayid to the

         12  end of Bayid, there were parking meters. There were

         13  parking meters all around Columbus Park. There were

         14  parking meters on Elizabeth Street from Bayid Street

         15  certainly up to Canal and beyond. Right now, those

         16  parking meters and for the last few years, those

         17  parking meters are gone.

         18                 It's not just in a no standing zone

         19  to allow delivery trucks to go through, now it's a

         20  parking lot for government officials, City

         21  officials, whether it be Assistant District

         22  Attorney, Judges or Police or whatever. There is

         23  parking plates, permit decals, whatever you call it,

         24  all along Bayid Street, all along Elizabeth Street,

         25  all around Columbus Parks. These used to be parking
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          2  spaces for people to come and shop and visit

          3  Chinatown. No more. When the parking garage was

          4  closed underneath the Police Station, no more

          5  parking.

          6                 Now, to add insult to injury, first

          7  you close Park Row and then you say wait a minute.

          8  We could use it for more parking. Use it for more

          9  parking for City vehicles, district attorneys,

         10  investigators, whatever. If they were going to close

         11  Park Row and make Park Row a parking lot, why didn't

         12  they take the permits off Bayid Street and Elizabeth

         13  Street and then transfer them to over Park Row and

         14  give us parking meters. You close it and then you

         15  just add more free parking for the City without

         16  thinking about the Chinese Americans or the Chinese

         17  who are suffering in Chinatown and just continuing

         18  to make things difficult for us. Thank you.

         19                 MR. VIGGIANO: Mr. Chairman, my name

         20  is Paul Viggiano. I'm President of South Bridge

         21  Towers and I'm glad to be here today. In support of

         22  what everyone said, we believe at South Bridge that

         23  our council person along with our Assembly person

         24  who happens to the be Speaker, have been very

         25  supportive of the efforts that we've put forward
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          2  with respect to many issues. This issue here is

          3  probably paramount to our community because of the

          4  many things that endanger our community with respect

          5  to the closure of Park Row.

          6                 I want to say that we have the

          7  confidence. We would like to see you move forward

          8  with this. Sometimes political issues are tough to

          9  take on. When you have a Mayor who is resisting

         10  certain things, but we have the confidence, I have

         11  the confidence. My community that of South Bridge

         12  and I'm sure the people here also feel the same way

         13  or else they wouldn't be here that we want you to

         14  move forward. We're confident that you'll do the

         15  right thing for all of us. And we want to see this

         16  go away.

         17                 We have a neighboring community,

         18  Chinatown and I've grown up in Chinatown. I've been

         19  part of Chinatown all my life. I see the difference.

         20  I've seen the difference in that community over the

         21  last three years in terms of the amount of people

         22  who are now going into the area. I see what's

         23  happened in my immediate community at South Bridge

         24  Towers. The difficulty with many people of all ages

         25  especially mothers with young kids trying to get
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          2  across the streets where now the traffic is so

          3  intense that we have four agents on one corner,

          4  traffic agents. We have three on another corner. We

          5  have, I think it's three or four on another corner.

          6  We have ten to 12 different traffic agents that are

          7  trying to do something with the traffic problem.

          8                 We have the President of Community

          9  Board 1, Community Board 2, Community Board 3 here

         10  to speak out for our plight. We have a Councilman in

         11  another district that's here and I know why she's

         12  here because she's afraid that this will spill over

         13  into other areas. She's here to help us gain more

         14  support. I appreciate that. Alan, I want to thank

         15  you very much for all you've done and Mr. Chairman,

         16  I really want to thank you for pressing this. I'm

         17  glad to hear that you're going to call for a vote in

         18  February. But more importantly, I want to thank you

         19  just for being good friends with our Council person,

         20  to have your other members here in support of him

         21  and he's brought this fight forward. It's a fight

         22  that we have to continue to press. But we do have

         23  the confidence in this Committee, in you, and in our

         24  Council person. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Ms. Turkel.
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          2                 MS. TURKEL: Hi, I'm President of

          3  Chatham Towers. We want to thank the Council for the

          4  efforts to reopen Park Row which the closing of Park

          5  Row has changed our lives significantly. Chatham

          6  Towers, the residential complex on Park Row,

          7  supports Introduction 185, 2004, the Park Row Bill.

          8                 We have endured three years of street

          9  closures in our community with severe impacts from,

         10  delayed emergency service access, inability to

         11  access our delivery/handicap ramp without showing

         12  identification, being subjected to the whims of

         13  individual officers as to whether we gain access or

         14  not to our ramp, repeated rerouting of our garbage

         15  pick- up site, rerouting of the five MTA bus lines

         16  that formerly traveled on Park Row, proposed

         17  reversing of our secondary streets, traffic

         18  congestion, noise, and air pollution. NYPD private

         19  vehicles took over Park Row and all surrounding

         20  streets affecting tourism and forcing some

         21  businesses to become shuttered.

         22                 Our concerns and pleas have fallen on

         23  deaf ears, forcing us reluctantly to file two

         24  separate lawsuits against the City including funding

         25  and filing our own environmental assessment study to
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          2  challenge the City and NYPD's Environmental

          3  Assessment Study that there was no impact on the

          4  community. That's what they said. There was no

          5  impact. Setting up a review process for street

          6  closures that involves all stakeholders has to be an

          7  important part of a democratic society. There might

          8  be valid reasons for extended street closures, but

          9  the reasons must stand up to public scrutiny.

         10                 We strongly implore you to vote for

         11  passage of this bill which provides important

         12  protections for all New Yorkers. Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Questions

         14  from Council Member Lopez.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Not to put you

         16  on the spot or anything like that, is there any

         17  action that the State can take at the level of the

         18  assembly and the level of the Senate and Governor

         19  that this kind of action from the Police Department

         20  or any law enforcement agency cannot be done in the

         21  fashion that they did this. Have you explored any

         22  possibility in that regard?

         23                 MS. ASHENBERG: I couldn't comment

         24  extensively to that only because I don't have a good

         25  grasp of the vast legal issues with State over City.
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          2  But I know when the Speaker joined the lawsuit, he

          3  and his counsel did extensive review of what

          4  authority the State has over the City when it comes

          5  to exerting their police power. And his decision was

          6  to join the lawsuit, not pass a bill through the

          7  Assembly. So I can only guess by that action that

          8  the State doesn't have any authority in this matter.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Again, I know

         10  that the Speaker has done incredible on this issue.

         11  I am in agreement with that. I just wanted to know

         12  if there is any possibility.

         13                 MS. ASHENBERG: I also just wanted to

         14  go back in my testimony, the State environmental

         15  requirements would force a State agency to provide a

         16  much greater review for public disclosure. And the

         17  Police Department had to be sued to get that far as

         18  well. Obviously this is a City issue where they have

         19  independence over the State.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: To the people

         21  who reside in the area, I just want to bring to your

         22  attention, if you can put in the record, it is true

         23  or not that the parking spaces now have been also

         24  extended for the Police Department on the entire

         25  area that used to be a park and an area for

                                                            61

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  recreation for the community. That is the area on

          3  the FDR ramp. Can you put that on the record please?

          4  Because it is also part of the problem that we have

          5  now. That it's not just closing Park Row.

          6                 MS. ASHENBERG: If I can comment on

          7  that which was a small victory for the Civic Center

          8  lawsuit. You're talking about St. James triangle?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: No. I'm talking

         10  about further away. By the way, we spent a lot of

         11  money from the City from the Parks Department to fix

         12  this area. The area that is on the pathway that gets

         13  you out of the Brooklyn Bridge and then once you

         14  come in there, all in there, they are using that for

         15  parking space.

         16                 MS. ASHENBERG: Is that St. James

         17  Triangle?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: No, no, that's

         19  not St. James Triangle. That's it. That's the name

         20  of it.

         21                 MR. LOUIE: The Red Brick Park.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Exactly.

         23                 MR. LOUIE: Let me assure that your

         24  insight is correct on this. It's totally being used

         25  now for police vehicles with the proper
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          2  identification. And it's being --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can I correct

          4  you on that?

          5                 MR. LOUIE: Sure.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: It's not police

          7  vehicles. It's personal police vehicles that they

          8  own and they get a special plaque to park in there.

          9                 MR. LOUIE: Thank you. That's correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         11                 MR. LOUIE: I'm not talking about

         12  vehicles with lights on it.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Exactly.

         14                 MR. LOUIE: And it's being extended.

         15  We had a problem just a couple of weeks ago and

         16  thanks to the speaker and Alan and the State

         17  Senator, Marty Connor, it got resolved. But they

         18  were parking the cars along where the buses stop to

         19  pick people up. What happen is several of the buses

         20  didn't stop. They just kept going. Because there was

         21  no where for them to pull over. Because behind the

         22  buses, the traffic was backed up, I don't know, two

         23  or three, four blocks. It's a particular problem for

         24  the handicap in our area when a bus can't pull up to

         25  a curbside to let down that gate for them to get in.
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          2  I don't see it getting better. I definitely don't.

          3  Because on the perimeter of South Bridge, I think

          4  it's going up Frankford, we never had cars parked

          5  there. Never. Now they're parked there. They're just

          6  all over the place.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

          8                 MR. LOUIE: You're correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Thank you

         11  for joining us this morning. At this time, I'd like

         12  to invite the next panel to come to the witness

         13  table. Mr. York Chan, Sio Wai Sang, Madilyn Wills

         14  and Sanford Goldstein. As this panel approaches, let

         15  me notify the next panel to prepare to testify, Paul

         16  Lee from the Mott Street Block Association; Jan Lee

         17  representing the Business Owners of Chinatown;

         18  Steven Tin, Chinese Merchants; and Rick Muller from

         19  the Manhattan Borough President's Office.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Chair, as

         21  this panel prepares to testify, let me just make the

         22  statement that this community of lower Manhattan

         23  continues to suffer from parking abuse, parking

         24  abuse at the hands of the vehicles of people who are

         25  suppose to be serving our community. This has been
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          2  an issue which was suppose to have been resolved by

          3  now with the reopening of the Police Plaza garage. I

          4  have demanded a meeting with the highest level of

          5  NYPD, specifically on this issue and we have members

          6  of your Council staff going around to document with

          7  photographs that we all know to be the case and that

          8  is the improper and illicit parking of these

          9  vehicles plaguing our community.

         10                 We're going to proceed with this bill

         11  and we are also going to proceed to insist on the

         12  remedy of this parking abuse. It frustrates me as it

         13  frustrates all of us that the wheels of justice turn

         14  sometimes as slowly as they do. But justice for this

         15  community which is endured more than any other

         16  community will be served. Of that, I feel confident.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Thank you

         18  very much for joining us. Mr. Chan.

         19                 MR. CHAN: Mr. Chairman, my name is

         20  York Chan. I represent C.C.B.A. Of Chinatown

         21  community. I'm the President of C.C.B.A. Three and

         22  one third years after the tragedy of September 11,

         23  Park Row remains closed. Over the years, the

         24  Chinatown community has come before the City Council

         25  and the City Administration with a single request.
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          2  Please, we implore you, open Park Row. We have proof

          3  that the closure of Park Row has damaged our

          4  economy; damage our residents' quality of life;

          5  damaged our economic survivability. The cuts have

          6  set that the closure of Park Row has damaged

          7  Chinatown.

          8                 Last month, the LMDC released their

          9  final report that stated simply that the closure of

         10  Park Row severely damaged the Chinatown community.

         11  The Chinese consulted Panopolin (phonetic)

         12  Association and the Chinatown community has

         13  historically a long relationship with the NYPD. Our

         14  local precinct has served the community well and we

         15  have monthly meeting in our headquarters between the

         16  community and the precinct. This has made for

         17  excellent communication between Chinatown and the

         18  precinct. So, why does One Police Plaza completely

         19  ignore us? The businesses and restaurants of

         20  Chinatown are deeply concerned about security. The

         21  citizens of Chinatown are told that they must

         22  totally inconvenience us for the sake of security.

         23  This inconvenience costs businesses to close and

         24  destroy the quality of life of the rest of us. We

         25  then become collateral damage in the war on
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          2  terrorism.

          3                 This is unacceptable. No citizens of

          4  the City of New York should be considered collateral

          5  damage in the war on terrorism. Please support the

          6  passage of Intro No. 185 into law. We have been

          7  ignored by the City and the NYPD and now we turn to

          8  the City Council to take the steps needed to protect

          9  us and communities throughout the five borough.

         10  Please pass Intro No. 185 into law. Thank you.

         11                 MR. SANG: Good morning. My name is

         12  Sio Wai Sang. I represent the Canal Street Merchants

         13  Association. I've been business owner open in Canal

         14  Street for 30 years. I know Chinatown better than

         15  anybody else. In Chinatown, we have to jewelry

         16  market right on the right hand side of Chinatown.

         17  We've been there since the big area of the jewelry

         18  business and around that area. We have 200

         19  signatures from around that area. Since September 11

         20  and they close Park Row and the people there have to

         21  get in from their homes and from New Jersey and from

         22  out of state. And we have no business at all. And

         23  all the business have dropped down over than 40 to

         24  50 percent. We lose a lot of employees because we

         25  can't use so many people. They used four or five
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          2  people and now they're going to cut down to three

          3  people. Every store cut down a few people. We have a

          4  big problem with the business.

          5                 Myself, I own three jewelry stores.

          6  But now I've got to cut down one. I've got to close

          7  the one. I hope we can continue to stay in business

          8  a little while. If they don't open the Park Row and

          9  this is very damaging to the jewelry business in our

         10  area and to the whole area. Also, we connect with

         11  SoHo, Little Italy and all around the area get hurt.

         12  All the people understand that. I think who has this

         13  power to shut down the Park Row. The Police

         14  Department or the Transportation Department because

         15  we pay the money. We are the taxpayer. We pay the

         16  money for this area. They have no power to shut down

         17  our business. That's what I would like to say. Thank

         18  you.

         19                 MS. WILLS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'm

         20  Madilyn Wills, Chair of Community Board 1. I'm here

         21  because Park Row is also in Community Board 1 and we

         22  empathize and understand very deeply the closing of

         23  Park Row, how its affected the Chinatown community;

         24  how its affected the connections with our Lower

         25  Manhattan community and the devastation that it has
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          2  created and continued in Lower Manhattan. I'm not

          3  going to repeat what people said, but I am going to

          4  talk about Red Brick Plaza a little bit. You opened

          5  a wound that I have. Speaking just about the effect

          6  that this has on Chinatown, the businesses, the

          7  spirit of the community and the continued inability

          8  of our entire Lower Manhattan community to heal.

          9                 I meet with the Department of

         10  Transportation last night to go over the next couple

         11  of years of Lower Manhattan of what we're in for,

         12  which I already known, but we went over some

         13  schedules. When you come down to Lower Manhattan and

         14  you drive down the FDR Drive, you get off at the

         15  Brooklyn Bridge exit. You have a choice. The choice

         16  used to be you would go onto Park Row and cross over

         17  to Tribeca, SoHo or whatever you need to do on the

         18  West Side or go down South, go up North. You had a

         19  choice of how to do this. Now you get off the FDR

         20  Drive. You have to make a left. You have to go all

         21  the way to Beacom Street, cross over to the West

         22  Side that way or go up through the traffic through

         23  Chatham Square and go sit in traffic on Worth

         24  Street. Coming to the West Side from the East Side

         25  now is a tremendous burden for anybody who is
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          2  traveling that way.

          3                 I'm bringing this up not because it's

          4  just important, but because before the end of this

          5  year is up, Chamber Street will be undergoing a 30

          6  month minimum completely rebuild, water main. Worth

          7  Street, Dwayne Street, Reed Street, every single

          8  street in Tribeca from the Brooklyn Bridge west to

          9  West Broadway will be torn up over the next four or

         10  five years. Chamber Street will become a one- way

         11  street east which means that Reed Street will be the

         12  only street that will be a west bound street off the

         13  Brooklyn Bridge. There is only a couple of streets

         14  going west bound. I mean, it's complicated, but

         15  trust me, this is going to be a nightmare.

         16                 Without Park Row reopened, to give us

         17  some other alternative for bringing traffic west,

         18  this is going to be so much worse than you even can

         19  imagine that it is now. It is just going to be a

         20  nightmare. We have six months really before this new

         21  beginning of absolutely cutoff of these

         22  neighborhoods is going to start. As bad as and I

         23  know it's terrible, as bad as the business has been

         24  hurt by the cutting of Park Row, the vulnerability

         25  also of the businesses further west and lower down
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          2  are also extremely tentative at this time.

          3                 This tearing up all these streets may

          4  force many of these businesses, who have really

          5  struggled over these three years, to finally close.

          6  Worst of all, the community that we've struggled to

          7  build as a sort of a one community is just going to

          8  be completely separated from one another. The

          9  importance of this bill and of reconnecting this

         10  with Park Row is even so much more important before

         11  this other construction starts. Oh, I forget,

         12  Broadway. Broadway is going to be completely dug up

         13  also from Leonard all the way down to Rector. I urge

         14  and I support this bill wholeheartedly.

         15                 Council Member, I just want to talk

         16  about Red Brick Plaza for a moment. Because on May

         17  2001, Community Board 1 made a deal with then Police

         18  Commissioner Kerik to get all the police cars off

         19  the Red Brick Plaza which you are referring to which

         20  was a $4 million renovation done in the '80's, which

         21  was destroyed by the Police Department and their

         22  parking. This is also a connection between Chinatown

         23  and the Seaport Financial District. This is also a

         24  walking area that connects the financial district at

         25  lunch time to go have lunch, a walk to Chinatown.
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          2                 When we showed him pictures of every

          3  bus stop, the Red Brick Plaza, every inch on that

          4  area being covered by police permitted cars and by

          5  the way, we have projected about one third of those

          6  police permits also being illegal and forged. Yes. I

          7  would say that by May 2001, Commissioner Kerik said,

          8  I will have all these cars off. He had them all off

          9  and he gave everyone a warning. They flooded the

         10  area with notices. He created a small miracle. He

         11  warned them that they would be towed if they didn't

         12  adhere to this policy. And by May 2001, the area was

         13  cleared off. September 2001, came, November 2001

         14  came, January 2002 and new Administration.

         15                 I had a discussion with Ray Kelly

         16  about this and he said to me when the municipal

         17  parking garage, we won't do anything before that.

         18  But when it's done, we'll move all the cars off

         19  which he has not done. I think that it's become very

         20  apparent that the Police Department reports to no

         21  one under this Administration. And although we

         22  understand security to be a very important number

         23  one need, we also understand that they have single

         24  handedly created so much complexity and so much

         25  unneeded heartache for this community that so one
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          2  has got to get them in line so that they become part

          3  of the process and not the problem. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Ms.

          5  Wills.

          6                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Thank you. First off,

          7  my name is Sanford Goldstein. I'm a resident of

          8  Chatham Towers, 170 Park Row, former resident of 180

          9  Park Row; spent plenty of years down there. I want

         10  to thank everybody, the Councilman and women and

         11  everybody else. I want to thank you in advance

         12  because I've been known not to mince words. I

         13  certainly won't here.

         14                 It's ironic that the Police

         15  Department which made their brief statement and then

         16  hightailed it out of here so quickly wasn't here.

         17  Because I wanted to ask them a couple of questions.

         18  The first question is, I wanted to ask them, do you

         19  know me? Do you know who I am, my name? And their

         20  answer has to be no, unless they lie. But the reason

         21  I ask that is I was the Board President of Chatham

         22  Towers for quite a few years. I've been on the Board

         23  of Chatham Towers for about 18 years. My current

         24  role, I'm not on the Board, but instead I work for a

         25  very large management company that manages co- ops
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          2  and condos in Manhattan of which Chatham Towers is

          3  one of our buildings. I'm the Manager of Chatham

          4  Towers as well as a couple of other buildings in

          5  Lower Manhattan.

          6                 His statement started off with, we do

          7  agree with the spirit of this bill. I mean what kind

          8  of slap in the face is this. It's a lie. Why don't

          9  they just say, we don't agree with this because they

         10  don't agree with it. It's an outright lie. They've

         11  said that they have reached out to the community, to

         12  the neighborhoods. I have never, ever spoken to

         13  them. I have never, ever been contacted. I have

         14  never received a return phone call not as a Board

         15  President and not as a Manager. I have needed to

         16  speak with them. We had a huge renovation of our

         17  plaza going on at Chatham Towers. We had the entire

         18  concrete structure which was our garage, our

         19  underground garage and above it the plaza ripped it.

         20  We couldn't bring in cement trucks to pour concrete.

         21  Thousands and thousands of yards of concrete had to

         22  be mixed from sand bags because they wouldn't allow

         23  concrete trucks, the mixing trucks to enter the

         24  neighborhood. Very dangerous situation.

         25                 I might be jumping around here, but I
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          2  just wanted to point out a few things from a

          3  management standpoint as a manager of a building.

          4  I've seen Chatham Towers, their insurance rates

          5  before 9/11, $28,000 for the insurance for the

          6  entire complex. That included everything; fire,

          7  liability, everything. It immediately jumped to

          8  $370,000 after 9/11. That's the good news. A month

          9  after we got our policy they came down to inspect

         10  the building. Because they have 30 days which they

         11  can cancel it or 60 days and after seeing Park Row

         12  closed, they cancelled us. It wasn't good enough to

         13  get $370,000. I sat there as the Board President at

         14  the time yelling at management to get us another

         15  insurance company that can insure us. We cannot be

         16  exposed like that without any insurance. They

         17  finally got another company. One company willing to

         18  insure us for around the same premium. However, our

         19  deductibles which were $2,000 and $5,000 for

         20  different categories jumped to $25 and $50,000

         21  deductibles. We were practically self- insuring

         22  ourselves anyway.

         23                 I mean that financially impacted upon

         24  our residents. Some of our residents are very well

         25  healed. Especially the new ones that have moved into
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          2  the neighborhood. Most of our residents have been

          3  here for 40 years or more. In fact, much more. They

          4  were in the neighborhood on Mott Street and Mulberry

          5  Street and then all the other streets and then moved

          6  to Chatham Towers 40 something years ago when it

          7  opened and they still live there or their children

          8  live there. We are a neighborhood. That's something

          9  that the Police Department ignores. They would never

         10  park on their own streets like they park in our

         11  neighborhood.

         12                 I am known to go out onto the

         13  sidewalks, not the streets, but the sidewalks of

         14  Park Row and Worth Street and put the red illegal

         15  parking stickers in the windows. I've been told I

         16  will be arrested. Some day you'll see me, I'm sure,

         17  arrested because I'm still doing it. And I will

         18  continue to do it. Because I'm not ticketing their

         19  cars, their personal vehicles that they say they are

         20  on police business. Somehow they arrive at 7:00 in

         21  the morning and they don't leave until 10:00 or

         22  11:00 at night. They are obviously just parking in

         23  the City and going on their business anywhere and

         24  elsewhere because nobody works that many hours of

         25  overtime, I hope. Maybe they do and we're paying for
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          2  that too.

          3                 I didn't think of it until today, but

          4  we didn't need the Park Row bill. We didn't need any

          5  of us. All we needed was somehow to eliminate all

          6  parking from all of those areas and the total

          7  opposition to the closure of the street would have

          8  ended. Everybody included the police who were

          9  willing to talk to you off the record laugh about

         10  it. That it's there only for the purposes of

         11  parking. Everybody knows that. They just lie. I was

         12  at one of the hearings when they went before a

         13  Judge. They had their two liar -- lawyers,

         14  liars/lawyers stand up and deny all kinds of things.

         15  Said they had meetings with Chatham Towers. They

         16  didn't. I was there. They just lied.

         17                 They used the garbage pick up as a

         18  weapon. It's a stick and carrot for Chatham Towers.

         19  After this meeting, you'll find that we'll no longer

         20  be able to put our garbage on Park Row. The garbage

         21  trucks will be told that they're not allowed to pick

         22  up our garbage. We will yell and scream and in a

         23  couple of weeks, they'll let the garbage be picked

         24  up again. This has happened after each and every

         25  meeting that we've had. They use the garbage that we
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          2  have to move it and get it all the way around to

          3  Worth Street on the other side. It's one of their

          4  little perks.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Let my office

          6  know if that happens after this. As long as that

          7  happens.

          8                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: I'll be glad too.

          9  Another thing, we've talked about businesses closing

         10  in Chinatown. I feel for all the businesses that

         11  close in Chinatown. But the one that I feel for the

         12  most is not that we have one less bank or one less

         13  jewelry store, I don't look forward to the prospect

         14  of that, but how can you call a neighborhood a

         15  neighborhood that doesn't have a supermarket. There

         16  is no neighborhood that I know of that doesn't have

         17  a supermarket. Yes, it was an ethnic supermarket

         18  dealing mostly for Asians, but not entirely. I buy

         19  milk for my kids there and shop there. I used too.

         20  When I would be in that shopping center, in that

         21  supermarket, the languages that were in the isles

         22  and hallways weren't English. It wasn't Chinese,

         23  Mandarin or Cantonese. It was everything under the

         24  sun from Eastern European to French to Italian. They

         25  were tourists who were shopping in the supermarket
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          2  for the delicacies that they hadn't seen before.

          3  That was also a tourist destination. It represented

          4  part of Chinatown, part of a neighborhood that has

          5  been ripped apart and destroyed every aspect of it.

          6                 The rest of the City has recovered

          7  from 9/11. In fact, the rest of the City has

          8  thriving. There are more stores, higher rents for

          9  all these retail operations. More employment around

         10  the City than ever before. Not in Chinatown. Not on

         11  the Lower East Side. Not in any of the adjourning

         12  neighborhoods.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Goldstein, thank

         14  you very much.

         15                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: I just have one more

         16  thing to say.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure.

         18                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: The racism card was

         19  brought up here. It's a little easier for me to talk

         20  about the racism because it's not my race. So I can

         21  speak out about it. But during an unamenable

         22  position of being Chinese and also sitting on this

         23  Committee and having to deal with this and I only

         24  hope you look at it without the reverse

         25  discrimination that could come into affect here and
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          2  not look to down play it. The Chinese community has

          3  been hurt and this has to be addressed because it is

          4  a City wide issue that depending on the

          5  circumstances can affect everybody and does affect

          6  everybody. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. I want to

          8  thank the witnesses for their time today and invite

          9  our next panel to speak. We're delighted to be

         10  joined by the Honorable Nydia Velaquez, member of

         11  Congress, who we'll hear from next and immediately

         12  after we hear from Congresswoman Velaquez, we'll

         13  hear from Paul Lee, Jan Lee, Rick Muller and Steven

         14  Tin.

         15                 MS. VELAQUEZ: Good morning, Chairman

         16  Liu, Council Member Alan Gerson and Councilwoman

         17  Margarita Lopez and all the members of this

         18  Committee. I want to thank you for the opportunity

         19  to come before you and I want to say that I support

         20  100 percent and more Intro 185. Too many things are

         21  happening in our nation in the name of Homeland

         22  Security. Civil liberties are at stake and we are

         23  here to say that in the name of Homeland Security,

         24  we should not use it as an excuse to attack an

         25  entire community in Chinatown so that we could
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          2  create a parking lot for the Police Department. It

          3  is wrong and it is immortal.

          4                 I am pleased to have the opportunity

          5  to express my support to Intro 185, legislation also

          6  known as the Park Row Bill. This bill will require a

          7  review process that takes into account the impact on

          8  the surrounding community when public streets and

          9  sidewalks are closed. As you are aware, the streets

         10  surrounding One Police Plaza have been closed since

         11  the attacks on September 11. The decision to close

         12  Park Row and barricade several other streets in the

         13  area was made without consideration and sensitivity

         14  of the consequences for Chinatown residents and

         15  businesses. The closures have exacerbated traffic

         16  congestion, compromise pedestrian safety and

         17  endanger lives by hindering access to emergency

         18  medical services.

         19                 The restrictions to the area have

         20  also devastated local businesses and limited

         21  economic development in the Chinatown community

         22  which has been slow to recover from the financial

         23  impacts of September 11. As a U.S. Congresswoman

         24  representing Chinatown, I have worked closely with

         25  residents, business owners and community leaders in
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          2  ongoing efforts to reopen Park Row for well over

          3  three years. Our attempts to minimize the traffic,

          4  public safety and economic consequences of the

          5  street closures have all been meet with resistance

          6  from the NYPD.

          7                 In fact, Senator Marty Connor,

          8  Speaker Sheldon Silver, Councilman Alan Gerson and

          9  myself meet with the DOT Commissioner and the NYPD

         10  Commissioner. We spent over an hour begging them to

         11  open Park Row. And I have to tell you that what we

         12  encountered there was the insensitivity and

         13  arrogance of this Administration toward an entire

         14  community. After numerous failed attempts at a

         15  compromise on these critical concerns, the community

         16  was forced to file a lawsuit against the City. The

         17  court ruled in our favor finding that the City

         18  violated State law by failing to consider the major

         19  community impacts of closing Park Row and ordered

         20  the City to prepare a full environmental statement.

         21  The City is currently appealing this decision. Shame

         22  on them. When the City makes an important decision

         23  such as the closure of a major thoroughfare, the

         24  impact in the surrounding communities should be an

         25  integral part of the process.
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          2                 Toward this end, I urge you to

          3  support Intro 185. This legislation requires a

          4  review of the community impact when the City closes

          5  a public street or sidewalk for more than 45 days.

          6  This assessment process includes justification of

          7  closure and identification of alternatives. It also

          8  requires an examination and consideration of the

          9  effects on the environment and traffic flow in the

         10  area as well as the economic impacts on businesses

         11  and compensation and this community deserves, small

         12  business community in this area, deserved to be

         13  compensated by the City.

         14                 New York City hard working residents

         15  and business owners should not have to fight tooth

         16  and nail to protect their health, economic security,

         17  and quality of life. I know that we are going to see

         18  the Mayor campaigning in our communities and talking

         19  about quality of life issues. Well, quality of life

         20  issues is something that the Chinatown community

         21  cares about. I, therefore, hope that I can count on

         22  your support in ensuring that Intro 185 is enacted

         23  into law. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you,

         25  Congresswoman.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I just wanted

          3  to, Congress Member, thank you from the bottom of my

          4  heart on behalf of myself and everyone I work with

          5  and represent for your stellar as always outspoken

          6  and tenacious leadership and commitment on this

          7  issue as well as every other issue of importance to

          8  us. Thank you very, very much.

          9                 MS. VELAQUEZ: Well, I want to thank

         10  you, Councilman and all the members of this

         11  Committee and I would also like to take this

         12  opportunity to say that yes indeed, the towers were

         13  attacked and the area was devastated. But we cannot

         14  talk about reconstruction and recovery if we don't

         15  include the Chinatown community. It is shameful that

         16  we haven't done that. When we look at the funding

         17  that came from the Federal government, funding, $21

         18  billion that we worked hard to bring into this City,

         19  it is unbelievable what the Lower Manhattan

         20  Development Corporation had done so far ignoring the

         21  needs, the economic needs of this community.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: -- For the

         23  congressional delegation of New York to call for an

         24  oversight hearing on the actions of the Police

         25  Department due to the fact that what they received
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          2  from the Federal government in regard to this is an

          3  impossibility to do something like that and to

          4  understand. What is the rationale of this because

          5  they are not giving us any information other the

          6  premises that is national security. And Congress has

          7  power over that.

          8                 MS. VELAQUEZ: Well, the problem is

          9  the way the legislation, the language was enacted

         10  and was crafted was done in a way that gives so much

         11  power and so much flexibility. So the oversight

         12  power that we have in this case has been weakened by

         13  the type of language that was made part of this

         14  location of money. Even when we attempted and I

         15  attempted through the Inspector General of HUD to

         16  have oversight over the City money, the $800 million

         17  that had been used, we failed and the answer back

         18  is, in the name of flexibility, New York City can do

         19  whatever they want. I hope that you use whatever

         20  jurisdiction and oversight you have to make sure

         21  that there is fairness and equity when it comes to

         22  the location of this money.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Thank you

         24  very much. We're now going to hear from Paul Lee,

         25  Jan Lee, Rick Muller, and Steven Tin. And
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          2  immediately following this panel, I'd like to invite

          3  David Diaz, Noah Pfefferblit, John Ost and

          4  Christabel Gough. Paul.

          5                 MR. LEE: Hi, my name is Paul Lee. I'm

          6  a resident in Chinatown. I've already lost my

          7  business and I'm trying to move on from that. Let me

          8  just say this, I really do want to brief because the

          9  Committee is not going to hear anything new or just

         10  hear a variation on the pain we're feeling. I'll

         11  tell you a quick story. Coming over here this

         12  morning, President York Chan of the C.C.B.A., his

         13  leg is hurting him so we called a car service and

         14  came over here and we're an hour late because we had

         15  to go from Mott Street to Worth Street and got

         16  caught in the traffic because of the closure of Park

         17  Row. That's my painful story for the day.

         18                 I know that I'm preaching to the

         19  choir right now. That all these people here and all

         20  the people in the audience are supporting us.

         21  Unfortunately, we don't have anybody from the

         22  Administration here. We don't have anybody who will

         23  in anyway work with us and that's the tragedy of

         24  this whole story and it goes on and on and on. The

         25  only message that I can send to them is and I think

                                                            86

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  all these people will agree, we're not quitting.

          3  It's our neighborhood and we're going to keep coming

          4  at you. Whatever it takes, suing you and marching

          5  around, we're going to wait for better weather. When

          6  it's a little warmer out there and look for open

          7  door and our gray panthers to come out and help us

          8  out as they have each and every time.

          9                 I just want to say to the Council

         10  Members, to the Transportation Committee and those

         11  who were not here, this event and eventuality of

         12  another terrorist event is coming to a neighborhood

         13  in your district. This is what will happen if they

         14  choose not to attack 1PP, come to a neighborhood

         15  anywhere in the rest of the City, you will find

         16  yourself with streets closed and no way to deal with

         17  it. Other than, if you have this bill in place. So

         18  one, I implore you to please enact this bill; get

         19  all the members to enact this bill. And number two,

         20  please make it retroactive if that's at all

         21  possible. Because this bill right now is not going

         22  to help us on Park Row today forward what it would

         23  if it was retroactive. Thank you very much.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Before our

         25  next witness, two brief comments for clarification.
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          2  One is, I want to assure, you Mr. Lee, and all the

          3  witnesses that even though only the choir may be

          4  present and the Administration shamefully absent,

          5  your testimony really is critical because we are

          6  creating a record, a transcript and I can tell you

          7  when Chair Liu and I earlier today had negotiations,

          8  we were able to cite testimony from the previous

          9  hearing in support of this bill. We were able to

         10  point out specific harms which witnesses testified

         11  too, to argue against those who wanted to derail

         12  this process. So your testimony really is of

         13  critical importance. The process is painfully slow

         14  and there is no one who is more frustrated than any

         15  of us in this room, but because of your testimony we

         16  will succeed when we vote on February 17.

         17                 Secondly, this bill is retroactive in

         18  its effect of encompassing streets previously closed

         19  including Park Row. There were efforts by some to

         20  try and make it not retroactive, but I can assure

         21  you, all of us insisted that any bill we pass must

         22  encompass Park Row as well as Wall Street as well as

         23  other streets which have been previously closed

         24  prior to the ensuing passage of this bill. I want to

         25  assure on all of that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Jan Lee.

          3                 MR. LEE: Hello. Firstly, I'd like to

          4  thank the members of the Council and indeed all of

          5  our elected officials because you guys have been

          6  there from the beginning. You are there when it

          7  happened. You saw the injustice and rose to the

          8  occasion. I think you all have to be commended. As a

          9  business person in the community, I would like to

         10  express that thanks.

         11                 For those of you who weren't here who

         12  missed out on the police ditching this meeting after

         13  they had their piece, I wanted to let you know what

         14  they said. They said, the process of 185 would be an

         15  undue expense and would be a burden. The undue

         16  expense and the burden is us. Don't ever forget

         17  that. The undue expense and the burden is the

         18  community. You as the Council have to let them know

         19  any expense at any burden at hiring any number of

         20  staff is necessary. Because any borough can be

         21  affected by this, any district. So the importance of

         22  their own words is very, very meaningful to us.

         23                 The other point that they wanted to

         24  make for those of you who weren't here was this is

         25  redundant; 185 is redundant because we have the
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          2  internet. You guys look it up. It's published. Go to

          3  the internet, go to the internet, go to the

          4  internet. When 9/11 happened, I didn't get my phone

          5  for five months. I didn't have any access to the

          6  internet. How many years did it take before they

          7  even showed that that was an officially closed

          8  street on the internet? When did it make it to the

          9  internet? The best that they could come up with was

         10  it's redundant. It's expensive. You're a burden. Go

         11  to the internet. That's not good enough. We all have

         12  to remember these people are temporary and the

         13  decisions that they make should be temporary. This

         14  is not something that should be written in stone. It

         15  wasn't good enough for me. It shouldn't be good

         16  enough for you. Again, I appreciate your time and

         17  the efforts that you guys put into this.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Rick Muller on

         19  behalf of Borough President C. Virginia Fields.

         20                 MR. MULLER: Good afternoon, Chairman

         21  Liu and members and staff of the Committee. My name

         22  is Rick Muller and I'm pleased to deliver the

         23  comments of Manhattan Borough President C. Virginia

         24  Fields on Intro 185A that is before this Committee.

         25                 Borough President Fields appreciates
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          2  the ongoing efforts of Council Member Gerson and

          3  Assembly Speaker Silver to focus attention on the

          4  severity of the economic damage, the compromise of

          5  residents safety, and the ongoing inconvenience

          6  inflicted on the downtown and especially the

          7  Chinatown community by the closure of Park Row. And

          8  she also appreciates the efforts of Chairman Liu and

          9  the sponsors of this bill to move this issue

         10  forward.

         11                 As Co-Chair of the Homeland Security

         12  Committee of the National League of Cities, the

         13  Borough President is acutely aware of the need to

         14  secure governmental and other facilities in the post

         15  9/11 environment. However, identification and

         16  implementation of security measures by the

         17  Administration should include the participation of

         18  and accountability to the affected community.

         19  Otherwise, we destroy the democratic principles we

         20  are trying so hard to defend.

         21                 This Committee has the full support

         22  of Borough President Fields towards the passage of

         23  this proposed legislation, which addresses the lack

         24  of governmental accountability in the decision to

         25  close public thoroughfares. Thank you for the
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          2  opportunity to comment.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Muller. And now we have Steven Tin.

          5                 MR. TIN: Hi, Chair and Committee

          6  Members. My name is Steven Tin. I represent Chinese

          7  Merchants Association, Better Chinatown Society,

          8  Chinatown of Council and I also have a business in

          9  Chinatown. I'm a newly appointed member of Community

         10  3.

         11                 I just wanted to say something real

         12  brief. As a store owner, business owner in

         13  Chinatown, everybody know from previous testimony,

         14  everybody suffer. Unfortunately, we're not getting

         15  the help that we're getting. But on our side of the

         16  merchants association, everybody has been telling

         17  me, the President, everybody, let's try to do

         18  something. We in Chinatown is doing everything

         19  possible to bring business back into Chinatown. But

         20  unfortunately, is our government helping us? Are

         21  they trying their best for Chinatown? I don't think

         22  so. I'm sure basically the government realize that.

         23                 Also, I'm the President of the Better

         24  Chinatown Society. We do a lot of events, cultural

         25  events, festivals to promote Chinatown, to bring
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          2  into tourists to the community, the business and the

          3  people to come in for cultural stuff. Our activity

          4  has been very successful due to the effort of only

          5  the community people. The government is suppose to

          6  help us after 9/11. Where were they? Now the New

          7  York Police Department, as a government agency,

          8  they're suppose to be helping us. Instead, they are

          9  the number one enemy in that sense of the Chinatown

         10  in Park Row. They are not communicating. They are

         11  not helping. It is no real reason for it except

         12  parking. There are so many excuses they could use,

         13  but that's all excuse. I hope this bill will go

         14  through and people will really put pressure on the

         15  NYPD. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. I want to

         17  thank you gentlemen for giving us your comments

         18  today and for being patience with us. Best regards

         19  to our Borough President. Next panel we have David

         20  Diaz, Noah Pfefferblit, John Ost and Christabel

         21  Gough. Do we also have Maria Bottino and Anna

         22  Goldstein? Are they here also? Hey, Maria. That's

         23  fine.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Chair, as

         25  it looks like this is our final panel for this
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          2  hearing, I just would like to beg your indulgence.

          3  If I could ask Mr. William Don who is the President

          4  of the Executive Committee of Project Open Door and

          5  all the seniors from Project Open Door who have been

          6  present throughout this hearing, if you would just

          7  stand and be recognized both for the record and for

          8  the cameras. I think it is important to note your

          9  presence because the impact has been so severe

         10  especially in our seniors. As I said earlier, your

         11  presence speaks for itself. If the seniors from

         12  Project Open Door would stand and be acknowledged

         13  and it should be noted that if for no other reason

         14  for these seniors, we owe it to them to pass this

         15  bill. Thank you very, very much.

         16                 MR. DIAZ: Good afternoon. My name is

         17  David Diaz. I'm a member of Community Board 3 and I

         18  also represent the drivers that are licensed by the

         19  Taxi and Limousine Commission. Basically, I just

         20  want to make three statements. One is, Police Plaza

         21  and central booking as it is known is secure right

         22  now. But in reality, all New York City should be

         23  shut down. The Empire State Building is much more

         24  important; 34th and Fifth Avenue should be closed

         25  down; U.N., where FDR Drive passes through that
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          2  should be shut down. How about First Avenue right in

          3  front of the U.N. Can you imagine once the towers

          4  that are going to be built beginning this summer;

          5  when that project gets underway? Those streets are

          6  going to get shut down. Can you imagine how much

          7  more important those structures are?

          8                 I think that the people that were in

          9  charge in the previous Administration took advantage

         10  of the system and thought wow, I'm going to be

         11  attacked. We should shut down our area. I think

         12  those people are gone. They're safe now. It's time

         13  to open up just like the rest of New York City and

         14  allow access to the minimal amount of traffic that

         15  was going through Park Row. Because it was minimal

         16  and it still will be minimal. But it's so minimal

         17  that it's affected the other streets.

         18                 Secondly, Police Officers, again,

         19  everyone knows they're parking everywhere. They have

         20  access to free transportation. Can you amend or make

         21  an amendment and say all police officers who live in

         22  New York City area leave their cars at home? They

         23  have free transportation services. Thirdly, our

         24  citizens, handicapped, and children in the area in

         25  regards to buses, they have access to the bus lines
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          2  at Madison and Pearl and then at Bay Yard and

          3  Bowery. That's a huge gap. That is a very huge gap

          4  for those people in that area.

          5                 One more statement in reference to

          6  the same thing. The Fire Department, if there were a

          7  fire in Chinatown, the most immediate Fire

          8  Department to respond is south of Park Row. South of

          9  Park Row at Beacom Street right off of Park Row. The

         10  time that it would take them to get to a building,

         11  let's say at Canal and Mott is time consuming enough

         12  that the building might just burn down. That they

         13  shouldn't even waste time. I really ask you to

         14  consider this because these are simple things. I

         15  don't know if they have been said before. But in

         16  comparison, the people who were in the previous

         17  Administration are gone. They are safe. Thank you.

         18                 MR. PFEFFERBLIT: Good afternoon. I am

         19  Noah Pfefferblit, the Director of Economic

         20  Development and Public Affairs for Wall Street

         21  Rising. Wall Street Rising is a coalition of

         22  downtown residents and businesses dedicated to the

         23  revitalization of Lower Manhattan. And I am

         24  testifying in favor of Intro No. 185 which would

         25  create a review process in the event of the closure
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          2  of a publicly mapped street.

          3                 I first of all want to thank Council

          4  Member Gerson for his leadership on this important

          5  issue and thank the Councilman and the Chairman Liu

          6  for giving me the opportunity to testify here today.

          7  The Councilman has taken the initiative to introduce

          8  this legislation and has continued to make changes

          9  to strengthen it.

         10                 Security considerations have become a

         11  pressing concern in our everyday lives. Since

         12  September 11, 2001, several streets and communities

         13  in Lower Manhattan have been restricted to vehicles

         14  and pedestrians because of their proximity to the

         15  New York Stock Exchange and other sensitive

         16  buildings.

         17                 The Wall Street Rising Downtown

         18  Information Center, where we also have our

         19  administrative offices, is located at 25 Broad

         20  Street, which is right across the street from the

         21  New York Stock Exchange. So we have seen first hand

         22  the significant adverse impacts that result from

         23  street closures. Numerous businesses have closed

         24  since September 11 in this area that I'm describing

         25  around the Stock Exchange that is restricted to
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          2  traffic and many small businesses report that there

          3  are continuing to struggle in part of because of

          4  restrictions which prevent patrons and deliveries

          5  from being able to access them by vehicle.

          6                 The seriousness of this situation was

          7  brought home to us earlier this week when Vine,

          8  which is the restaurant that is owned by Julie

          9  Menin, the President and Founder of Wall Street

         10  Rising, was forced to close. Unfortunately, Vine was

         11  never able to overcome the sluggish business

         12  atmosphere that since September 11th has gripped

         13  this restricted area around the New York Stock

         14  Exchange. In addition to these dire impacts that the

         15  situation is having on our local businesses, the

         16  restrictions have caused problems for residents as

         17  well and these most notably affect the senior

         18  citizens in the area or people with disabilities who

         19  may try to get to and from their homes. Especially

         20  in the kind of conditions that we have experienced

         21  in terms of the weather recently is a good example

         22  of these problems.

         23                 We understand that there is a

         24  legitimate need for some streets to be closed or

         25  restricted for security purposes. And Intro 185A

                                                            98

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  would ensure that accurate information about such

          3  closures is communicated to communities and that

          4  there is consideration given to the economic and

          5  other impacts of these actions, as well as to

          6  possible mitigating measures. These kind of measures

          7  could include the placement of taxi stands at

          8  intersections outside the area restricted to traffic

          9  which is something that we've advocated for and

         10  which would provide a reliable way for people to

         11  gain access to and egress from businesses. Other

         12  effective ways to offset the impact of street

         13  closings might include wayfinding systems with

         14  helpful, clear signage or special marketing

         15  initiatives to offset the impact that these

         16  restrictions have by drawing patrons to the

         17  businesses that are so seriously affected.

         18                 The coming years will see several

         19  major redevelopment projects throughout Lower

         20  Manhattan. We are excited about these because they

         21  will inevitably bring benefits to our community of

         22  residents and workers when they are complete. But,

         23  of course, there will be many hardships associated

         24  with them while they are underway. We believe that

         25  this Intro will help manage the impacts caused by
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          2  these projects so that we can all survive here and

          3  look forward to being part of a revitalized and

          4  redeveloped Lower Manhattan. For these reasons, we

          5  strongly support this Intro and we urge all the

          6  members of the City Council to pass it. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. We'll now

          8  hear from Christabel Gough. Just for the record, I

          9  would like to state that Senator Martin Connor has

         10  submitted written testimony strongly recommending

         11  the passage of Intro 185. Ms. Gough.

         12                 MS. GOUGH: Hello. I'm Christabel

         13  Gough. I'm from the Society for the Architecture of

         14  the City. We are a historic preservation advocacy

         15  group. We wanted to come down here to thank the

         16  Council very much for taking up this important

         17  problem and to show our solidarity with the people

         18  who have suffered so much in Chinatown and Lower

         19  Manhattan. We heard about it on the internet. Yes.

         20                 We are here to support this very

         21  moderate proposal and I would like to interject that

         22  I am absolutely shocked that the Administration

         23  would oppose a proposal as sensible and moderate as

         24  this and also that they have walked out on this

         25  hearing just as they did on our oversight hearing on
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          2  the Landmarks Preservation Commission which the City

          3  Council recently held which was also a crowded

          4  hearing. They don't apparently want to hear from the

          5  people. We want to thank the Council for standing up

          6  for the people who elected them.

          7                 We are here to support this very

          8  moderate proposal to require a review of the impacts

          9  of street closing on communities. Many City

         10  agencies, as well as some institutions and business

         11  entities in New York today need to take a more broad

         12  minded, thoughtful, and deliberate approach toward

         13  all street closings and demappings, but especially

         14  the arbitrary type of closing that this bill

         15  targets. Streets are open public spaces that are

         16  vital to a functioning City.

         17                 We have been concerned with attempts

         18  to close small streets that are part of the history

         19  and culture of the City, such as Taras Shevchenko

         20  Place in the East Village, which has been at least

         21  temporarily kept open because of the efforts of the

         22  Ukrainian community to preserve this memorial to

         23  their national poet. There have been other examples

         24  in Greenwich Village which I won't go into in view

         25  of the lateness of the hour.
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          2                 We find that some City agencies have

          3  a very narrow view of the public interest in

          4  preserving and using streets, which belong not to

          5  City bureaucrats, but to the people of the City.

          6  This bill would require at least some consideration

          7  of administrative policies which may not be in the

          8  public interest. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Last but

         10  certainly not least, Maria Bottino. I want to thank

         11  you for being very patient with us today.

         12                 MS. BOTTINO: Oh, no, thank you. Good

         13  morning, Council Members. Thank you very much for

         14  taking such a leadership role on this issue. It's

         15  very significant to our community. I'm here today on

         16  behalf of Asian Americans for Equality, our

         17  affiliates and our clients to urge you to pass Intro

         18  185A which would require the City to conduct a

         19  community impact study when a public street is

         20  closed.

         21                 For 30 years, AAFE has provided

         22  services to residents and businesses in Manhattan's

         23  Chinatown. As such, we're particularly sensitive to

         24  the closing of Park Row which is a lifeline between

         25  Chinatown, the Civic Center, the Financial District,
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          2  and our neighbors to the west. Before the closure of

          3  Park Row, downtown workers, government employees,

          4  tourists and visitors found their way up Park Row to

          5  patronize the many restaurants and shops in

          6  Chinatown. Local residents had direct access to

          7  hospitals, government offices and schools. The

          8  closing of Park Row has resulted in a crippling

          9  traffic disruption with buses and trucks rerouted,

         10  ambulances and emergency vehicles being diverted and

         11  pedestrians not being able to have direct access to

         12  the facilities they need.

         13                 The result has been devastating to

         14  local businesses, many of whom we work with. One

         15  example is the Best Coach Express Agency which is

         16  based in Chinatown and relies very much on

         17  pedestrian traffic. Their business has dropped off

         18  tremendously. Restaurants such as A&B Restaurant at

         19  1 Mott Street have also reported a terrible drop off

         20  in the number of patrons, as visitors no longer find

         21  access to that part of Mott Street easily. As I said

         22  before, all the residents who live in this area have

         23  had difficulty in getting to area hospitals and to

         24  other emergency centers that they need.

         25                 We applaud measures that will
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          2  safeguard our community, of course. However, we

          3  strongly oppose the implementation of such measures

          4  without input to address the problems that they

          5  precipitate. Despite several official gestures to

          6  address our concerns, the City has largely turned a

          7  deaf ear on our communities plight. Intro 185 will

          8  ensure the communities around the City have a say in

          9  decisions that affect local businesses, emergency

         10  services, and vehicular and pedestrian traffic.

         11  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         13  We have a closing comment from Council Member Gerson

         14  and then myself.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         16  much, Mr. Chair. Thank you to all the witnesses and

         17  all the members of the community present in the

         18  audience. All of you represent the thousands of

         19  community members in Lower Manhattan who have

         20  endured the score of street closures without any

         21  mitigation and indeed, you represent all New Yorkers

         22  who are faced with other street closures or could be

         23  faced with street closures in the future.

         24                 I just want to make a point, Mr.

         25  Chair, for the record that in all the testimony
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          2  we've heard, no one has testified that they've had

          3  an opportunity to register input. No one has

          4  testified that they've attended sufficient meetings

          5  or participated in processes where their input was

          6  registered. None has testified that they feel

          7  satisfied that there has been a mitigation plan in

          8  place to alleviate or minimize the burden to these

          9  street closures. No one has testified in other

         10  words, that this Intro is not necessary because a

         11  sufficient process has already taken place.

         12                 If anyone would have been involved or

         13  should have been involved in a process, it is the

         14  people who have testified at this hearing. I

         15  conclude, Mr. Chair, with confirmation that this

         16  Intro remains as imperative as ever and we must

         17  proceed with it and I look forward to the vote on

         18  February 17. Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. I want to

         20  thank Council Member Gerson for his leadership in

         21  advancing this bill and to address the concerns of

         22  the community, particularly with those that have

         23  been impacted by the closure of Park Row. I want to

         24  thank all of the advocates and the activists who

         25  have come out here and spent their entire morning
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          2  with us. I hope it has been not too much of a

          3  torture. It certainly has not been enjoyable for any

          4  of us in our effort to reopen Park Row and to bring

          5  accountability for those decisions that have been

          6  made.

          7                 I also want to thank the staff of the

          8  Transportation Committee, Roberta Ragonar

          9  (phonetic), our infrastructure division person and

         10  also Mitch Schwartz, the legislative counsel to our

         11  Committee.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I just want to

         13  note our acknowledgment and appreciation to Tammy

         14  Toe, (phonetic), our Director of Community Affairs

         15  from District 1 and Solomon Turkel, our Director of

         16  Legislative of District 1 who has worked hard also

         17  with your staff to prepare this hearing.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. There

         19  being no other witnesses at this hearing, this

         20  Transportation Committee hearing is now adjourned.

         21                 (Meeting adjourned)

         22                 (Following written testimony was read

         23  into the record)

         24  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

             Anna Goldstein

         25
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          2                 Thank you for introducing the Park

          3  Row Bill. It has been almost three and a half years

          4  since the temporary closure of Park Row due to 9/11.

          5  As time goes on, the street closure where I live

          6  seems more and more permanent. How long can the word

          7  temporary be used to describe a street closure? This

          8  bill will assure citizens of a review process for

          9  the closure of streets.

         10                 I am a resident of Chatham Towers,

         11  and I am deeply saddened as I watch the southern end

         12  of Chinatown becoming less and less vibrant. The

         13  closure of Park Row has impacted the flow of

         14  business to this area. A major Chinese supermarket

         15  here closed and obviously no one thinks that it

         16  would be profitable to rent the space for business.

         17                 The closing of Park Row has made

         18  traffic onto Worth Street is so heavy that it is

         19  extremely difficult to cross the street safely. Cars

         20  are feeding onto the street from the Bowery, Mott

         21  Street, St. James Place, and Oliver Street. Needless

         22  to say, there are constant traffic jams. The Park

         23  Row closure just seems to have been a convenience

         24  for the Police Headquarters because the street is

         25  currently being used for a parking lot for them.
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          2  Public parking has been taken away as cars

          3  displaying police permits park all around the

          4  adjacent area, by Columbus Park, as well as Mulberry

          5  and Mott Streets.

          6                 It has affected us who live in the

          7  community as well as those who visit us. Traffic in

          8  the area is difficult to negotiate, public parking

          9  is nearly impossible to find. So as a result, my

         10  family and friends prefer to get together outside of

         11  Chinatown. As a mother, I do not want my children to

         12  continue to grow up with a barricaded street where

         13  we live. We were urged after 9/11 to continue our

         14  lives and go about our business normally. I must

         15  say, the Park Row closure is anything but normal.

         16  New York City is rebuilding and revitalizing while

         17  our area is not.

         18                 Please, I urge you and your fellow

         19  Council Members to vote to pass the Park Row Bill so

         20  that street closures cannot be closed arbitrarily

         21  and indefinitely without review. We once were a

         22  neighborhood.

         23  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

             Martin Connor

         24  Senator

         25
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          2                 The events of September 11th have no

          3  doubt left an indelible mark on the Lower Manhattan

          4  community. Perhaps no other community in the United

          5  States recognizes the importance of safety and

          6  security than the residents and workers of Lower

          7  Manhattan. While that importance is certainly

          8  recognized, such considerations need to be balanced

          9  with the necessities and well being of the community

         10  at large. The closure of Park Row has been

         11  disastrous to the businesses and residents of

         12  Chinatown. Numerous businesses within Chinatown have

         13  been forced to move or worse close due to the loss

         14  of pedestrian traffic alone. The seemingly random

         15  rerouting of traffic has made it increasingly

         16  difficult for most businesses to even receive

         17  deliveries.

         18                 Intro 185 will finally create the

         19  public process necessary to keep communities

         20  informed about what the City is doing in our

         21  neighborhoods. By legislating that the City and its

         22  agencies keep the public aware, a transparent and

         23  open dialogue between the City and the Community

         24  Board's is created. Security and safety are always

         25  important concerns for our City; however, the
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          2  public's right to know about the decisions that

          3  affect our very streets is just as important.

          4                 While James Madison Plaza has been

          5  returned to the people of Chinatown and the City has

          6  compiled with the court order issued in February to

          7  vacate the park and return it to the community, this

          8  victory is only the first step in reopening Park

          9  Row. Intro 185 would end the legal debate in the

         10  courts and give to the community a bigger role in

         11  the decisions that govern local streets. The people

         12  of Chinatown have been forced into isolation because

         13  of this arbitrary street closure and as a result the

         14  economy of this community has been greatly damaged.

         15  Intro 185 will finally force the Police and any City

         16  agency that has the power to close streets, to

         17  answer for their actions.

         18                 I strongly recommend passing City

         19  Council Bill Intro 185.

         20

         21  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

         22  John Ost

         23

         24                 My name is John Ost. I live at 333

         25  Pearl Street, on the South side of the Brooklyn
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          2  Bridge. After September 11, 2001, Park Row was open

          3  to City buses only. This practice continued until

          4  after May of 2002, when Park Row as closed to all

          5  traffic without any public hearing.

          6                 Both closures had a debilitating

          7  effect on what was at one time a very pleasant

          8  neighborhood. I protested both closures in writing

          9  to both the previous Mayor and Police Commissioner

         10  and the present Mayor and Commissioner, but to no

         11  avail. Excessive traffic, air pollution and noise

         12  are the results of the continued closure of Park Row

         13  as well as diminished business.

         14                 Because there are too many buses on

         15  Pearl Street, now there are massive traffic jams on

         16  the side streets. Stop and go traffic creates large

         17  amounts of diesel fumes and carbon monoxide from

         18  vehicles. Because of the traffic jams, ambulances

         19  from NYU downtown and fire engines from Beekman

         20  Street are delayed in the traffic. The result,

         21  endless wailing of sirens disturbing the 5,000

         22  residents of South Bridge Towers, my community.

         23  Drivers don't like sitting in traffic, so they blow

         24  their horns, further destroying our quality of life.

         25                 I can no longer take the M15 bus
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          2  uptown, it simply takes too long with the traffic. I

          3  no longer eat in Chinatown. It is too much of an

          4  inconvenience. Many of my local businesses (because

          5  fewer people are willing to come into the

          6  neighborhood from Lower East Side of Manhattan) have

          7  gone out of business. People no longer come to visit

          8  because of the traffic and because the private

          9  vehicles of police officers have taken all of the

         10  parking spaces including sidewalks, parks, and the

         11  north bound exit (Park Row) ramp off the Brooklyn

         12  Bridge.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 12:35 p.m.)
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